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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to shareholders the
annual report of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

| am taking this opportunity to express our gratitude to the Group’s staff for
their contributions enabling the Group to work through a tough business

environment and securing the business growth for the preceding year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s turnover and gross profit
kept on increasing in the past 5 years.
Turnover was reported as HK$1,737.4
million (2006: HK$1,540.1 million) for the
March 2007, which
indicates an increase of 13% from last

year ended 31
financial year. Gross profit increased by

21% to HK$174.6 million (2006:
HK$144.6 million).
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New Production site in Heyuan
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The operating profit of the Group is HK$23.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2007 (2006: HK$21.2 million). The consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders is HK$11.0 million (2006: HK$12.6 million), which represents a
decrease of 13% from last year. The basic earnings per share is HK 4.00 cents
(2006: HK 4.65 cents). The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share payable to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on 27 August 2007. Subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the dividend
will be payable on 13 September 2007. During the year, the Group announced
an interim dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2007, the Group’s net current assets amounted to HK$192.5
million and the shareholders’ funds were HK$370.2 million (2006: HK$358.2
million). The total bank borrowings and finance lease was HK$190.7 million and
the gearing ratio which is defined as total borrowings to shareholders’ funds,
excluding minority interests, is 0.52. The year-end cash and bank balances
were increased from HK$83.5 million to HK$93.4 million.

At 31 March 2007, total available banking
facilities of the Group were approximately
HK$255.4 million, of which HK$69.7 million
was available for use. Finance lease
obligations outstanding on the same date
amounted to HK$5.0 million. The Company
issued corporate guarantees to banks for
granting of banking facilities to wholly
owned subsidiaries. At 31 March 2007,
total amount of such corporate guarantee
committed was HK$389.2 million.

e BERHEETHEE
Intricate PCB Module Production
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The Group’s assets are mostly financed by shareholders’ funds, trade payables,
finance lease and bank borrowings. Trade payables are repayable within one
year. Bank borrowings composed of trade financing repayable within one year
and term loans repayable in installments from 3 to 4 years. Total bank borrowings
have increased due to the growth in business and new capital expenditures of

Heyuan factory.

The borrowings are mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars to prevent currency
risk. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars, Canadian dollars, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. The Group
has engaged in foreign currency forward contracts with banks to manage certain
daily foreign currency trade payments and control the conversion risk arising
from foreign currency transactions. Most of the Group’s borrowings are bearing

interest at floating rates which are in reference to the Hong Kong Hibor rate.
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As the turnover in the reported year was increased, inventory level was relatively

increased to HK$256.8 million from HK$202.0 million of last financial year.

Average stock turnover is controlled to less than 60 stock turnover days.

In the reported year, the Group issued 7,605,766 new ordinary shares due to
the exercise of warrants. The exercise price was HK$0.4 or HK$0.5 per share.
The Group also repurchased 1,640,000 ordinary shares in the open market.

The purchase prices were ranged from HK$0.445 to HK$0.530 per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

EFTESMHEHERREZ BETEHEX
More and more Principals for the Value-Added Electronic
Distribution Business
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Although the consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders was smaller than that of last
year, the year ended 31 March 2007 was a
handsome year in the Group’s core business.
The overall turnover was increased by 13%
and the gross profit of the Group was
increased by 21%. Due to the fact that the
Group had subsidized substantially in the
setting up and test run of the new production
site in Heyuan, net profit contribution of this
sector was decreased. Since the test
production and parallel management period
had already been finished, similar kind of
expenses would be less significant in the

coming year.

By the same token, the Group had acquired a Japanese loudspeaker driver
AR EITAKREE  manufacturer in Osaka in June, 2006. The company had long term business
with some of the most renowned mobile phone manufacturers. The target of
the acquisition was to re-engineer the company to penetrate the mobile phone
loudspeaker business in China, Korea and USA. During the implementation as
the synergy effect was not yet appeared, a book loss of about HK$5.2 million

was recorded for such operations. The management believes that such

operations can be improved in the coming year when operation synergy of the

subsidiary can be seen.
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Advance SMT Lines in clean room working environment

The Group is engaged in three major core businesses, namely:

— EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services) and Consumer

Electronics
- Electronic Components — Distribution and Manufacturing
Distribution and

- Digital and Personal Computer Products —

Manufacturing

EMS and Consumer Electronics

The overall business of EMS, OEM and
ODM in the reported year kept growing.
Turnover of this sector increased by 17%
to HK$675.0 million when compared with
last fiscal year (2006: HK$575.2 million)
while the gross profit of this sector grew
rapidly to HK$73.2 million (2006:
HK$50.9 million) which represented a
growth of 44% when compare with last
year.

EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Service)

As one of the main direction in the growth of manufacturing activities of the
Group, business of EMS kept growing in the past years. Turnover of this sector
increased by 30% to HK$427.8 million when compared with last reported year
(2006: HK$328.0 million). Instead of merely providing assembling work for
customer, the Group further strengthened the supply chain management team

to provide customers turnkey solutions.

In order to equip the Group to cater for more quality and quantity services, the
Group prepared to facilitate a new floor equipped with clean rooms as well as
new SMD machines. The set up of this new floor would be finished by the 4th

quarter of this year and the capacity will be doubled.

Although business of this sector is similar from that of the common manufacturing
of electronic products, EMS manufacturing needs state of the art management
system with extremely demanding quality control system. From the said
demanding nature, customers in this segment were steady but customer accepts

almost zero defective tolerance but return in higher price acceptance.
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BXRHAZMEAUBZEEE R
ODM Digital Audio & Video Player for personal entertainment

In this segment, the Group is now engaging in the production of
telecommunication modules in mobile phone base stations, active antennas,
radar parts, electronic modules in automobiles as well as PCB assembly for

industrial purpose non-contact printers.
Consumer Electronics

Turnover of OEM and ODM manufacturing of
consumer electronics was HK$247.2 million which
maintained the same as that of the last year (2006:
HK$247.2 million). Due to the fact that the Group
had maintained two parallel production and
management teams in both Yantian and the new
Heyuan production site in test production period,
this sector had a negative contribution to the
Group. On the other hand, due to the re-
engineering of the newly acquired Japan
subsidiary, the Group had to bear a loss relating
to its operations of approximate HK$5.2 million.
As a whole, this sector brought considerable
negative impact to the Group’s contribution in the
reported year. The Management strongly believes that these impacts will be
eliminated in the coming fiscal year.

Products in this segment was mostly portable audio and video products for
households such as radio, loud speakers, boom-box (portable CD), cassette

player, mini compo Hi-Fi, clock radio and electronic toys.

In the reported year, this business segment was limited by the limited production
space in the existing factory site in Yantian, Dongguang. The situation will
greatly be improved after the new Heyuan Factory Site is completed.

ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS — Distribution and
Manufacturing

The overall turnover of this segment was HK$661.5 million (2006: HK$588.6
million) representing a growth of 12% when compared with last reported year.
The gross profit recorded a 7% growth to HK$65.4 million (2006: HK$60.9

million) when compared with last year.
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Business in this segment is to distribute various passive and active electronic
components of the Group’s own production and also represent various renowned
brand names of suppliers from different countries as their authorized distributor
in Hong Kong and China. Products of this segment includes diodes, transistors,
integrated circuits (IC), power modules, MCU, CPU, memory chips and display
modules etc. Application of these components are electronic toys, power
supplies, radio, CD players, DVD players, TV, MP3/MP4 and amplifiers. In the
more advanced level, this segment also provides solutions for controller of air-
conditioner, MP3, electronic bicycle, iPod dockings as well as power

management modules etc.

Other than the solid foundation of distribution
of components in Hong Kong, the Group had
laid more effort in mainland China. The
performance of Shenzhen and Shanghai sales
office were outstanding. In order to have
deeper penetration in the market, the Group
had further strengthened the engineering
capability in providing total solutions for
customers. Instead of merely selling electronic
components and IC to customers upon

request, the Group actively designed hardware

AR EEEF R EER

Assembly Line in Heyuan Consumer Electronics Factory

and software product solution for customers.
The approach gained good response from

customers.

The Group kept on gaining new distributorship from electronic component
suppliers. In the coming year, the Group had confidence to gain more new
authorized distributorships from renowned suppliers. Together with existing
distributorship of Toshiba, Panasonic, On-semiconductor, Lite-on, Arnold
Magnetic, Chino-Excel Technology Corp (CET), Elan Microelectronics Corp (ELAN)
and MCS Logic Ltd (MCS Logic), Kyocera, Diodes, the Group could further
strengthen its status as one of the leading authorized distributors for electronic

components and semi-conductors in Hong Kong and PRC.

7 ANMEEERAR QA
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In the manufacturing of diodes and transistors, although the demand was
dropped in the reported year, it will be growing up again in the coming year.
Customers began to accept price increase. The Group had also negotiated with
new, sizable OEM customers for diodes and transistors and the result was
encouraging. The Management believed that new and sizable long term orders
would be gained in the coming year. To cope with this new demand, the Group

will set up new facilities to double up the present capacity.

Digital and personal computer products —
DISTRIBUTION AND MANUFACTURING

Turnover of the digital and personal computer
products business grew to HK$400.9 million
(2006: HK$376.3 million) which represented

a growth of 6.5% in the reported year. Gross

TOSHIBA

profit also grew by 9% to HK$36.0 million
(2006: HK$32.8 million).

Business in this segment including products
such as MP3, MP4, DVD, digital picture
frames, USB memory drives, DECT cordless

EEREZENEFmlE, BEFIERTRMNEFHE
Various electronics solution for different application areas
supported by different microprocess manufacturers

phones, wireless audios as well as personal
computer products such as motherboards,
display cards, hard disk drives, memory

modules, desk-top and notebook computers.

The manufacture side of this segment was steady. By new investment in the
engineering team, tooling house as well as the new plastic injection workshop,
the Group kept developing new models for MP3 and MP4. By the committed
quality of the products, the Group gained good recognitions from renowned
customers. iPod docking was also one of the successful products of this sector
in the reported year. The Group was also started planning to develop iPhone

dockings in the coming year.
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In-Circuit Testing System ensuring good PCBs applied to final
assembly process

DECTEBHBEFEMBR AT BFEZHHHEL -
TEBAEERERBERAER -

{3 14 FR B ]I B 37 I8R5 4R {1 T B8 51600,000F 77 IR 2
BERM MEFHEBER B LoRFEELE
ERERINLTRE SEEEFHEERAEZRE
R BELEREALRERBFEE - BEZEEREAG
ERNSBLENDZBMNERAIBEER -

The Group had also set up new engineering and marketing team for the
preparation of entering into the 1.8G, 2.4G and 5.8G DECT cordless phone
market. New tooling had already finished. Although it was still in premature
stage, the team had already received considerable enquiries from telecom

customers of various countries.

With branches in Toronto, Vancouver, Halifax and Calgary, Canada Daiwa had
gained substantial market share of hard disk drives, display monitors and mother
board and the business was steady. Since some of the medium sized players in
the market had already prepared to quit from the market, there was a good
symptom that customers of these competitors had already started approach

Daiwa Canada.

FUTURE PROSPECT

T 0 EMS is the core direction of the
- S SE— .
Group’s future development in
manufacturing. A new production floor
for this segment will be set up by the
4th quarter of this year and the
production capacity will be doubled up.
in EMS

manufacturing will also bring in further

The turn-key program

trading benefits of material supplies.
Turnover and profit contribution of this
sector will keep growing and being one
of the major contribution to the

Group’s profit.

Products for the DECT cordless phone will be launched by the middle of this
fiscal year which will bring the Group to a new era of manufacturing.

The new factory site in Heyuan provides an extra 600,000 sq.ft. of factory area.
The production of consumer electronics, wire and harnesses, metal work and
semiconductor production will move to this new site. The Group has already
gone through the whole process of test production in consumer electronics and
has proved that the cost of manufacturing is much lower than that of Dongguan.
The lower cost in electricity and local government charges will also be a

considerable contribution to the profit margin of this sector.

9 AN EERERA A
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SR FEBS frE B —BEREYRERRYE
The Lead-Wire Factory, supplies to the Group’s diode
manufacturing as well as to the industry

In the distribution of the electronic component sector, the Group was quite
successful in developing new distributorship from renowned brand names. The
Management believes that new distributorship agreements will be signed in the
coming fiscal year. For the further synergy of the distribution business, the

Group is looking for acquisition of proper operations in the industry.

In the manufacturing segment of diodes and transistors, from the forecast of
OEM customers and the increase of new sizable OEM customers, demand for
this sector will greatly be increased. There is a chance for the Group to acquire
used equipment from an existing manufacturer at favorable price and the capacity

of production will be doubled.

As a summary, the Management believes that the coming year will be a fruitful

year for the Group.

Employees

At 31 March 2007, the Group employed a total
of approximately 6,000 employees of which 132
were Hong Kong based and 70 were Canada
based. Most of the others were PRC employees

in different production sites.

The Group’s remuneration policy is in line with
the prevailing market practices and is
determined on the basis of performance and
experience of the individual. Sales personnel
are remunerated by salaries and incentives in
accordance with the achievement of their sales
target. General staff are offered year-end discretionary bonuses, which are based
on the divisional profit and individual appraisals. The Group also provides a
Mandatory Provident Fund or ORSO scheme and medical benefits to all Hong
Kong employees. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 18 August 2005, the Group may grant
share options to directors and eligible employees. Up to 31 March 2007, no

share options had been granted.

The Group is committed to devoting more resources in providing internal and
external training to the employees. Other than sending staff to participate in
seminars and lectures, the Group continues to recommend qualified staff to
take part in professional courses such as the ISO9000, TS16949 and Six-
Sigma Quality Systems. The training programs not only enhance employees’
career development and professional knowledge, but also contribute to up-
grading the management system of the Group.
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Turnover

Profit attributable to

shareholders

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Share capital

Reserves

Shareholders’ equity

Minority interests

Total equity

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of

the Group for each of the last five years ended 31 March 2007.

—®Tt
2007
FHT
HK$°000

1,737,449

10,994

773,513

402,077

371,436

27,814

342,435

370,249

1,187

371,436

= /\

A

2006
FAT
HK$'000

1,540,139

12,648

685,250

325,833

359,417

27,218

330,953

358,171

1,246

359,417

—-ETH

— ==

2005
THET
HK$'000

1,225,840

20,575

607,630

258,282

349,348

26,596

322,125

348,721

627

349,348

—ZEEN —==5=
2004 2003
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
841,606 773,487
15,330 12,106
474,851 431,285
192,707 168,475
282,144 272,810
15,881 15,881
265,587 254,994
281,468 270,875
676 1,935
282,144 272,810
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BT TR EE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of electronic
components (38%)

BERPEAE
Hong Kong and
Mainland China (32%)

EFHEEmM

EPNCE PS¢
BE AR e B

Japan (13%)

“ERLFERIEERAD EEE
TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL BUSINESS FOR 2007

<

“ERLFERMESI S CEXE
TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT FOR 2007

BAABKEHHER
Manufacturing and
distribution of personal
computer and digital
products (23%)

AREFTEELEERBR
BEFHEEM

Contract electronic
manufacturing service and
consumer electronics (39%)

HA g MER

Other Asian countries
(3%)

B

Europe (15%)

Manufacturing and distribution of electronic components

Contract electronic manufacturing service and
consumer electronics

Manufacturing and distribution of personal computer and
digital products

>

_.

BT o s RE R AR
BHNETERLEERB R

JEEM
North America
(37%)
BERH
Turnover

—EEL —ZEEZTRN
2007 2006
FiET F#ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
661,475 588,641
675,017 575,181
400,957 376,317
1,737,449 1,540,139
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
good corporate governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’

value.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2007, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision making

processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Model
Code”).

directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with the

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the

required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group. The principle functions
of the Board are to:

(1) establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

2) determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives

of the Group;

(3) monitor management performance;

(4) approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals,

key funding and investment proposals;
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BOARD OF DlRECTORS (continued)

5) oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance;
(6) assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board comprises four executive directors and three independent non-

executive directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve annual
and interim results, and to review the business operation and the internal control
system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board meetings are

also held to approve major or special issues.
Sixteen Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2007.

Members of the Board, number of Board meetings held and the attendance of

each member during the year are set out as follows:

HEEBRE EZEEBAY
Number of meetings attended/

Members of the Board Number of Board meetings held

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President) 16/16
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-President) 16/16
Mr. WAN Chor Fai 16/16
Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly 16/16
Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 12/16
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 12/16
Mr. LIU Ngai Wing 12/16

15 AN EERERA A
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

BOARD OF DlRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each Independent non-executive directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rule.
The Company considers that all of the Independent non-executive directors are

independent.

Given the nature and business objectives of the Company, the Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. List of directors and their biographical details are set out on

pages 24 to 26.
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive

officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LAU Tak Wan is the Chairman of the Board and the president of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the role of the president and the chief
executive officer is the same. The Board considers that the present structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for efficient
and effective business planning and execution. Hence, the Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the shareholders of the Company that Mr. LAU Tak
Wan will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the
president of the Company. However, the Company will review the current

structure as and when it becomes appropriate in future.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election and under the Code provision A.4.2,
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, the three Independent non-executive directors are not appointed for
a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of
the bye-laws of the Company, and their appointment will be reviewed when

they are due for re-election.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on, among other things, the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management of the Company and is
delegated by the Board with the responsibility to determine on behalf of the
Board the specific remuneration packages for all Executive directors and senior

management of the Company.

HEEBERES
ZESSRRY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Remuneration Committee: No. of Meeting
Mr. LIU Ngai Wing (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

Executive director
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 1/1

17 AN EERERA A
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice

and recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant

experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2007.

Members of the Audit Committee, number of Audit Committee meetings held

and the attendance of each member during the year are set out as follows:

HEEERE

EREEEEBNRY

Number of meetings

Attended/Number of

Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee meetings held

Members of Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2
Mr. LIU Ngai Wing 1/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed with the auditors the annual financial statements and received
the unaudited interim financial statements, with recommendations to the

Board for approval;

2) reviewed the change in accounting standards and policies as well as

assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;
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AUDIT COMM'TTEE (continued)

(3) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management functions;

(4) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory
requirements;

) considered and recommended the appointment, re-appointment and

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;

(6) reviewed and monitored external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards; and

(7) discussed with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations before the audit commences.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company did not establish a Nomination Committee. The duties and
functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code are performed
by the Board collectively with no director being involved in fixing his/her own
terms of appointment and no independent non-executive director being involved

in assessing his own independence.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Board also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the

Group.

19 AN EERERA A
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditors of the Company,
provided the following services to the Group and their respective fees charged

are set out as follows:

WE & A

Type of services Fees charged
FET

HK$°000

Audit fee for the Group 1,855
Taxation services 110
Total 1,965

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the accounts of the Group for the relevant accounting periods in accordance
with statutory and regulatory requirements. In preparing the accounts for the six
months ended 30 September 2006 and for the year ended 31 March 2007, the
directors have adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The accounts for the reporting year have been prepared on a

going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out on

pages 33 to 34 in the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and is
committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The effectiveness of the internal control system was also

discussed on an annual basis with the Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The Group’s internal control system encompasses its policies, processes, tasks,

and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

(1) facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance
and other risks with a view of achieving business objectives. This includes
the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss and

fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed;

2) help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision

of reliable financial information for internal or external reporting; and

(3) help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and

also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s

objectives.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The Directors submit their report together with the audited accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the design, development, manufacturing and distribution of electronic

components, electronic manufacturing services and distribution and

manufacturing of personal computer and digital products.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit by
business segment and geographical segment for the year is set out in note 5 to

the accounts.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 35.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share totalling HK$2,787,000 was declared
on 4 December 2006. The Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.015 per share totalling HK$4,172,000 in respect of the year ended 31
March 2007.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2007 are set

out in note 19 to the accounts.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note

17 to the accounts.
SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the company are set out in note 31 to the

accounts.
WARRANTS

Movements in warrants of the company are set out in note 33 to the accounts.
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RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves during

the year are set out in note 34 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2007, the reserves of the company available for distribution
amounted to HK$91,366,000 (2006: HK$77,386,000), including contributed
surplus of HK$72,309,000 (2006: HK$72,309,000).

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$167,000 (2006: HK$616,000) during

the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there was no restriction against such right under the laws in Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

each of the last five years ended 31 March 2007 is set out on pages 11 to 12.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, sales to the five largest customers of the
Group in total accounted for approximately 23% of the Group’s total turnover,
with the largest customer accounting for about 12%. The five largest suppliers
of the Group together in total accounted for approximately 33% by value of the
Group’s total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounting
for about 19%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)
Mr. WAN Chor Fai

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Mr. LIU Ngai Wing

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan and Mr. LIU Ngai Wing retire by rotation in accordance with
clause 99 of the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

The terms of office of the directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-

laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan, aged 57, is the founder and the President of the Group. Mr.
Lau graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in Sociology and has more than 21 years’ management and
production experience in the electronics industry. Prior to founding the Group,
Mr. Lau had over 6 years’ experience in running his own business in the
electronics industry. He is responsible for the overall corporate planning, strategic

development and marketing of the Group.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky, aged 50, is the spouse of Mr. LAU Tak Wan. Ms.
Chan is the Vice-president of the Group. Also she is the Director of Administration
and Finance responsible for administration, human resources and finance of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, Ms. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management and at the same time running

her own business for more than 10 years.
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BYFHITES

BHLEE  BRESNTZm RZZETWF+-_A%
Z f£ & Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited
(THCH]) 2 E S84 3% - HOHER —RAABRA
Al WHEB—RRAEBLMHNYMEREEQNR - EE
EEBBERARZERRE  R—RAGNREELT
MYEERRGE AR - TEEREEERAA - £5%
ENMEZERZMRAZEEES - IAHCIHAT - £
EERBETNREERABZEEERA - BRZ
T FE_TT_FHHEEEMZT (EB) BRAQ
RIZERREE TR _ET-_FE T TMFHH
BEZAGEZTEHEMN  BEREBEERAERDFEE
EFHKEBRSFRENRIEESERAARE
BESEIFHAENTF HEYHAMBESERES
BB - RABALMAR  ENREERBRA
RIREABROERAB ZBIIERITEE RBLE?
X 5 F7 £ Global-Tech Appliances Inc 2 & % °

BEEARTARGHMAES  HEGHMAE -
The Chartered Management Institute ~ &8 & 12 5 %
RERBEEFEEG 2 EREE - BR—NAEFRK
BARDRVEERITES -

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr. WAN Chor Fai, aged 49, is the CEO (Manufacturing) of the Group. Mr. Wan
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in Production and Industrial Engineering and is responsible
for the business development and manufacturing management of the Group.
He has more than 17 years’ experience in manufacturing and marketing. Prior
to joining the Group in 1987, he worked for an international conglomerate and

was in charge of the electronics division.

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly, aged 45, is the CEO (Distribution) of the Group
responsible for the Group’s overall marketing strategy and the distribution of
electronic components. Mr. Mak joined the Group in 1988. He has more than

21 years’ experience in the sales and marketing of electronic components.
Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, aged 62, has been appointed as the Managing
Director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited (“HCIH”) in December
2004. HCIH is a private limited company which has significant shareholdings in
a property construction company publicly listed in Hong Kong, Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd., and a property management service company, also
publicly listed in Hong Kong, Synergis Holdings Limited. Mr Buttifant is also an
alternate director for both of these companies. Before joining HCIH, Mr. Buttifant
was an Operating Partner of Barings Private Equity Partners Asia Limited. He
was also the Managing Director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee
Hong”) from 2001 to 2002 and was the Adviser to the board of directors of Wo
Kee Hong from 2002 to 2004. He was the Managing Director of IDT International
Limited for over 8 years and had worked for Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited
and Polly Peck Group for more than 11 years in the capacity of Finance Director
and Managing Director during the period. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong public companies: Giordano International
Limited, and Alltronics Holdings Limited, and a director of a NYSE public

company, Global-Tech Appliances Inc.

Mr. Buttifant is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Chartered Management Institute; the Hong Kong Management Association and
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He became an independent non-executive

director of the Company in 1994,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Mr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 56, holds a Master of Science Degree in Global
Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science Degree
in Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu is an executive director of eSun Holdings Ltd, independent non-executive
director of New Smart Energy Holdings Limited and Hang Fung Gold Technology
Ltd. He is an associate member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
and is also a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan, aged 54, was awarded Bachelor of Laws Degree (LLB) by
University of London in 1988 and Post-graduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) by
University of Hong Kong in 1991. Mr Choi was the Principal of Messrs. Y.F.
Choi & Co., Solicitors from 2003 to 2005 but transferred to Messrs. Ong &
Chung Co., Solicitors, as an associate providing professional legal services for
customers of Hong Kong and foreign countries.

Mr. Choi was admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 1993
and a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales in 1994. Before Mr.
Choi took up his legal career in 1993, he had served in the Home Affairs
Department for about 13 years (1977-1990).

Senior management

Mr. HO Chui Sing, aged 35, is the Qualified Accountant of the Group and joined
the Group in 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and had over 8 years’ accounting, finance and
auditing experience.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and these service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated
by either party for not less than three or six months’ prior written notice.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the directors’ service contracts noted above and the connected
transactions noted as below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

RZBEZFELF=ZA=+—H ARAEEFHFLHEE At 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of each director and chief
10 (383 1&01])) 352146 M &% ﬁZi‘uEﬂ%Fﬁ FL8kEL executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
BIELTRAULETARESETESFTZHNIZESTE|  its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
BERINMERNB] LB E  SEENRZESITHRA  Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), as recorded in the register maintained by the
BEARNBDINEAEBE LR (IREHFRPEIEHEXY  company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the company
WMrER)2KRD - HEKRGD REREFE ZEZNKARE  and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
T by director of Listed Issuer in the Listing Rules were as follows:
(a) RAEAQPTAEREEIIOETZRAFE (a) Long position in of HK$0.10 each in the Company
BRALER/FTEIR
FHARRG 8B
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares attached to derivatives
FLARER BRTLER
Unlisted Warrants Ordinary shares in issued
BAEE  EEER At BAES ZEER HitEs ay
Exp? Personal Corporate fif7  Other [/ Personal [f& Corporate [ Other [z Total BAt
Name of directors interests interests  Notes interests Notes interests Notes interests Notes interests Notes interests Percentage
AEEELE

Mr. LAU Tak Wan 817,142 28,062,390 283 3,982,856 4 5,719,999 1 135,139,830 2&3 9,516,665 4 183,238,882 57.73%

Rkt

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky 502,856 28,062,390 283 4,297,142 4 3,519,998 1 135,139,830 283 11,716,666 4 183,238,882 57.73%

FRERE

Mr. WAN Chor Fai - - - 50,000 - - 50,000 0.02%

BEERE

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - - - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.32%

BRAEHE

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT - - - 500,000 - - 500,000 0.16%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(a) RADAFRSREMEI0CETZRAFR (E) (a)

1. Bl ERRLZT (BIEEZEB BEERA
A A360,000:2 A% # 7& K % 17 2,520,000 °

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Ltd
([ China Capitall) Bz # & &~ 2 7
10,083,226 ik #E & & i 15 72,200,598 °
China Capitalz B9 275+ 2 &7 A< i 2|
FAEVER SRTAD 2T EETRAHRK
LA -

3. Leading Trade Ltd ([ Leading Tradel) & &
WA ARNRAAN7,979,164R IR # &
62,939,232 ° Leading TradeB ' 2 A+ B 3
TRABBICERE B TR ZHETE#
TRABRZTH#HE -

4, Cyber Concept Limited ([ Cyber Concept])
H 25 % 5 AN 2 713,840,000 B8 #E F & Bk 19
8,516,667 % ° Cyber Concept&n 2 A+ 12
BIRABALERE  BRTEHSZATE
BITRAHRZTHEE -
(b) RAELBDEHBELIB 2R G (b)
Dominion International Limited i 2115 1% %&£ 4 2

BB EEEAS 2+

EFERERQA

Cosmos Wires and Connectors Manufacturing Limited
Westpac Digital Limited

EREXERQF

Vastpoint Industrial Limited

AMEEERAA

Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

o - BIEERRE LD BEREREETHRE
TEAR DA ZERREIEL 140,000
10,0000 -

AN EERAER A A 28
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Long position in of HK$0.10 each in the Company (continued)

Notes:

360,000 warrants and 2,520,000 shares in the Company were jointly held
by Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan (the spouse of Mr. Lau).

10,083,226 warrants and 72,200,598 shares in the Company were
beneficially owned by China Capital Holdings Investment Ltd (“China
Capital”). The issued share capital of China Capital is 60% owned by Mr.
Lau, and 40% owned by Ms. Chan.

17,979,164 warrants and 62,939,232 shares in the Company were
beneficially owned by Leading Trade Ltd (“Leading Trade”). The issue
share capital of Leading Trade is 50% owned by Mr. Lau and 50% owned
by Ms. Chan.

3,840,000 warrants and 8,516,667 shares in the Company were
beneficially owned by Cyber Concept Limited (“Cyber Concept”). The
issued share Capital of Cyber Concept is 50% owned by Mr. Lau and
50% owned by Ms. Chan.

Shares of associated corporations of the company

Dominion International Limited, which is 50% owned by Mr. Lau, and
50% owned by Ms. Chan:

BEZEREEECRHEAE
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

50,000

1

455,000

1,500,000

In addition, each of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan beneficially owns 140,000

and 10,000 non-voting deferred shares respectively in Cosmotec

Precision Industrial Limited.
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BEABRBEEN  R-BBLFEZA=+—8  F2
I
7|<

AREES LB RIFE2GRERFZAMP L
HABBELHRNETAAEFLETESRHNEE
SHAASIMERARRRBRME  BEAAFRES
FHmRBITHABRWE 2 BB AT RAR R SHE AR
EE (EEAE %&%T1W%ﬂFVﬁZ%@‘ﬁ%
By RESFTEREAER AR

EEAEN

FEEAR  ARARUERBEERNENEEEKZ
EESITRIERIXFREAEH -

=
L
xt
i

RZZEZXF /XA —H - Elite Century Holdings Inc.
Hep— ﬁmﬁ&jﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
BR2RAS—EMERMRERTL-EHHERZR - &
HH-_EEARFANA-—BE-ZE——FRA=+—

H o t#EE 2 AT A15,332.64M7T °

BRIFLTRE LARXSBEREERS - EFRR
FRARSBIEEBEGR IR A FREAEER K
HERME  BARFABRREBLAFAE -

RELMRA - LS BEEEXSBERERREER
5o
B EXFratESN - AERER - ARE S EME AR

BRTEARS  NIREBEEEHARSIMBRABZ
(EHEEMHBRAD (TEMRAUDEARAERERRAETE
ENEERS -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers in the

Listing Rules.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

One of the subsidiaries of Elite Century Holdings Inc. had entered into a rental
agreement in respect of office space in Canada on 1 June 2006 with a company
jointly owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky for the period
from 1 June 2006 to 31 May 2011. Monthly rental paid for the office premises is
CAN$15,332.64.

The above constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and is fair and reasonable

so far as the shareholders of the Company, taken as a whole, are concerned.

The above connected transaction constituted an exempted connected transaction

under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had entered
into any connected transactions discloseable by the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Listing Rules”) during the year.
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RZZEZRAFNATNR  ARARRETLEHHRAUE
178 2 SRR RNV R AT 8] ([#hET &) - SAER B
EERCEBREAS([EFE)) - BE_ZTLF
Z A=+ — B AD B AR SR AT 81K B AR
RIFEFEREMNBARTEZBRE -

FERRWVED

RIBZALF=ZA=+—RH RUITEFMFA AR
RIRBESRPEGIEEMTFE 2 ECMA
B BEESREREARREHITRAS%H,IA LR
ZAE(RRBEERHERTRABRI AT :

REAQXB RO B EE

Leading Trade Limited
China Capital Holdings Investment Limited

M et -

1. Leading Trade Limited” 50%1& 25 & 2115 18 % £ FT i
BRE0%E =S BRIBR L TR - Bt - RIEE S
KR EAEEH) - Leading Trade Limited + 2 % 4 B[R 2
+ % 8 B ¥ 562,939,232 © 183,238,882
183,238,8828 A A B g 15 2 #E & ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited Z 60%##

= ARBETENEE RI0O%ER BRI Z THTE
B HL - RIEFHFRHEKH - China Capital
Holdings Investment Limited * 21 %4 KR &2+ 5 5l
W% & ¥ B 72,200,598 © 183,238,882K
183,238,882 N A AR 17 2 #E#s o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 18 August 2005, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, which
replaced the old share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) in force previously.
The Company has not granted any options under the New Scheme and no

share options were outstanding as at 31 March 2007.
INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2007, to the best knowledge of the directors, the following
parties (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded
in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as being
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company:

Interests in the shares of the Company

HEBRITRG
BEROHE BEBEIL
(o3 Number of % of the total
Note shares held issued shares
1 62,939,232 22.63%
2 72,200,598 25.96%
Notes:
1. Leading Trade Limited is 50% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and 50% owned by
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, Leading Trade Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in 62,939,232, 183,238,882 and
183,238,882 shares of the Company.
2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited is 60% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan

and 40% owned by Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested
in 72,200,598, 183,238,882 and 183,238,882 shares of the Company respectively.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
and recorded in the register of Substantial Shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2007.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public

float throughout the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 21.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the Independent non-executive directors

are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for the
Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of
the group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of both the internal audit and
of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr.
CHOI Yuk Fan and Mr. LIU Ngai Wing. Two meetings were held during the

current financial year.
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REAFER > RRARREBABERSHARAGFER
4 1,640,000/ A~ A B R EECAOE T ZBG » %
EWRHO DN BORMOHZFABOT ¢

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company purchased a total of
1,640,000 shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited, all of which shares were cancelled. Particulars of the shares

repurchased are as follows:

BmE BERRAKXRE
RHEHE Price per share
Number of It ESE I RIEE

XB5AB E6H shares Highest Lowest
Trading Month/Year repurchased price paid price paid

/%7? /%E

HK$ HK$
—ZETRFMA 32,000 0.530 0.520
April 2006
—EERFRA 148,000 0.510 0.490
May 2006
—EERFERNA 32,000 0.485 0.475
June 2006
ZEERFEAR 40,000 0.465 0.465
July 2006
—ZEERFENA 390,000 0.480 0.445
August 2006
ZEERNFNA 426,000 0.495 0.465
September 2006
—EZEXRFTA 18,000 0.480 0.470
October 2006
—EELF— A 130,000 0.490 0.475
January 2007
—ETEF-A 192,000 0.485 0.475
February 2007
e 232,000 0.495 0.475
March 2007

1,640,000

B LS - ARBREEAHBARREBEE-T
THFZA=+—HI-HRABERE LEXED
ERMARRABZ LHES -

B BED

AEEHRECKABEIFBKERHMEBMER &
REEEREE  HENAER  BREEEE-

EEEEMm
BE
258

BB —ETLFEA-TLER
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wE(BE
XEEARX)
Total cost
(Including
expenses)
BT

HK$
17,168
73,910
15,774
18,723
177,800
205,823
8,834
63,076
92,640

113,219

786,967

Save as disclosed above, Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold and redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year ended 31 March

AUDITORS

2007.

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan
President

Hong Kong, 27 July 2007
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAIWA ASSOCIATE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 35 to 113, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

33 EMEmEERERADA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



8 3 A% A R

Independent Auditor’s Report

ERSRPTEFUNEREBMBREMABASBE LR
%ﬁﬂm%%ﬁﬁ P 388 TE B9 12 Fr BUR PO 4% B8 0
BEFEHNRFRERMERBRRTEE

r%ﬁm%ﬂw0Eﬂﬁ%%@@%'ﬁ%%%%
AMAT%Q&EAW ?ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mw
MiEdl - ARFFEENEZRRF - BXUER/ELQE

4%%%& PRERER - BB %%F%%%%
RS BRENREERAELONE TN RE
M ARFEMBEHRERNBEEI®HTH -

BFEE RAMESHEXEERACNEE LR

BN EZE R -

=R

BMRR  ZEREVBRRERBRBEEBVBERESE
AEEMATFHMRBIAGREBRR _ZETLF=RA=
T-HREBRAREEHEZZB LFENOFEREA
ShRE  WERBREB(RAKIDNEBRERATZ AR
%o

BOBKESTMERA

HESE

B —ZETTLHFEA=-TtH

AMBEERER A A 34

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2007 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 July 2007
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mEBEmEREK Consolidated Income Statement
HE—_TTE+F=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2007
—EEt —EER
2007 2006
B &t FET F&T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
= %0 Turnover 5 1,737,449 1,540,139
HE KA Cost of sales 7 (1,562,893) (1,395,520)
£ 7 Gross profit 174,556 144,619
H fib Y = Other income 6 2,114 1,482
HERLCHAX Selling and distribution expenses 7 (29,678) (24,083)
—MRITBRAX General and administrative expenses 7 (1283,351) (100,774)
5 a A Operating profit 23,641 21,244
Bl & B AN Finance costs 9 (8,313) (3,769)
FEiEHREHEREER Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity 20 - (1,638)
K B4 Al A Profit before income tax 15,328 15,837
S B = Income tax expense 10 (6,011) (3,570)
EINCEER Profit for the year 9,317 12,267
FEM A Attributable to:
NEERFFEA Equity holders of the Company 13 10,994 12,648
9\%(1‘]2?%& Minority interests (1,677) (381)
9,317 12,267
fi% 2 Dividends 14 6,959 5,447
NAlEmSE ARG Earnings per share for profit attributable
Hx@ﬂ to equity holders of the Company
— AKX — Basic 15 HK4.00 cents HK4.65 cents
— 8 — Diluted 15 HK3.99 cents HK4.63 cents
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31 March 2007

—EZt —EETR

/N
B 2007 2006
K ot FET FE&T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ETMBEE Non-current assets
5k Goodwill 16 25,079 24,811
Y - SRR E Property, plant and equipment 17 178,153 145,662
*ﬁ%ﬁiiﬁ&iiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé Leasehold land and land use rights 18 25,376 26,093
HEZEGZEEER Interest in a jointly controlled entity 20 1 1
BIEFTS T E E Deferred income tax assets 30 701 1,088
AHEHENBEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 4,340 141
HihEE Other assets 710 710
....234360 ¢ 198,506
mENE E Current assets
FE Inventories 22 256,753 202,043
JE Y S BR IR Trade receivables 23 177,168 188,277
TERRIE - ZE R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24
E A, fE W 5RIE 11,456 12,302
PEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 29 344 —
75 18 Uy ) Taxation recoverable - 582
ReERReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 93,432 83,540
.....589,158 oo 086,744
wEE Total assets 773,513 685,250
L Equity
NRE=FEE ARG Capital and reserves attributable to
AR AN R 1% equity holders of the Company
& 2= Share capital 31 27,814 27,218
& &5 Reserves 34 342,435 330,953
370,249 358,171
> B AR R 2 Minority interests 1,187 1,246
B Total equity 371,436 359,417
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EE Borrowings 26 50,377 6,196
FEEMSHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 5,015 4,559
EmEEEE Other long-term liabilities — 5,692
55,392 16,447
mE B E Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 26 140,336 87,053
FE 1S & R IR Trade payables 27 180,177 203,392
FE A5 & FA R H i FE A< 3R Accruals and other payables 28 23,710 18,480
FES B8 Taxation payable 2,462 —
eI A Derivative financial instruments 29 - 461
_seess 30930
HEE Total liabilities 402,077 325,833
BERRARE Total equity and liabilities 773,513 685,250
mBEEFE Net current assets 192,468 177,358
EERERTBDAEG Total assets less current liabilities 426,828 375,864
RZZETEEFLAZ+LAKESTSHB : Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 July 2007:
21528 FR 158 3% LAU Tak Wan CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
A Bl President Vice-president
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BEREXR

Balance Sheet

—EE+F=A=+—H 31 March 2007
—=2t —TEX
2007 2006
Bt &t FET FA&T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M B A mRE Investments in subsidiaries 19 34,038 34,038
JE W B BB A R FE Amounts due from subsidiaries 37(b) 202,423 272,692
326,461 306,730
mE & E Current assets
FERRE - Zek Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24
H b & W R IE 192 214
e RhBESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 25 52 25
244 239
wEE Total assets 326,705 306,969
&= Equity
NRE=FE AEG Capital and reserves attributable to
A& A R f% 4 equity holders of the Company
[N Share capital 31 27,814 27,218
& & Reserves 34 298,496 279,492
G R e Total equity 326,310 306,710
mE B E Current liabilities
FE ST B AR R H M FE 5P kI8 Accruals and other payables 28 354 259
e BiIE Taxation payable 41 _
395 259
BERKBE Total equity and liabilities 326,705 306,969
mE A EEE Net current liabilities (151) (20)
BEFHE Net assets 326,310 306,710

RIETELEFELA-TLAKESEHA : Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 July 2007:

PR 150 7% LAU Tak Wan
Bl 48 % President

il

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
Vice-president

& B8
o 2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (outflow)/
inflow from operations
Interest paid
Interest received
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China enterprise income tax paid

Canadian income tax refunded/(paid)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment, and leasehold

land and land use rights
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Bt it
Note

35(a)

35(d)

35(b)

35(c)

For the year ended 31 March 2007

—EE+ —EER
2007 2006
FET FBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(27,096) 36,223
(8,313) (3,769)
1,233 663
(691) (1,135)
(1,774) (1,465)
341 (2,501)
(36,300) 28,016
(34,820) (25,609)
533 38
(180) (2,208)
(247) —
(360) —
(35,074) (27,779)




mEBReERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE—ZTELF=A=1T—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2007
-2t —TERX
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEXBZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT D Proceeds from issue of shares 3,800 3,374
& 5 B A% Share issue costs (6) (1)
i [ AR 17 Purchase of own shares (782) (268)
{ENESINGIRE ¢ g Contribution received from minority
2 W B & Rk shareholders of a subsidiary = 1,000
FILIRITE R New bank borrowings 440,750 237,296
EEETER Repayment of bank borrowings (355,882) (211,361)
REHERESIEZ Payment of capital element of
NG ) finance lease obligations (3,194) (4,437)
X IR A Dividends paid (3,681) (8,181)
MEXBZRESRAFHE Net cash inflow from
financing activities 81,005 17,422

BeRBEcEE2EMFEHE Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents 9,631 17,659
REOBE—BzBHEREELEE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 83,540 65,037
ReRASEHEZ Exchange gains on
E X2 cash and cash equivalents 261 844
R=ZA=+—HZEHE2E Cash and cash equivalents
REEHE at 31 March 93,432 83,540
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TMeEEm ¥R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_TE+F=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2007

DNEEREEAENL
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

LHRR
;&N = DB
Share i W Minority Total
capital Reserves Total interests Equity
FA&T FA&T FAT FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
(Kt 7%31) (Kt #%34)
(Note 31) (Note 34)
R-ZZTZENFWMA—H At 1 April 2006 27,218 330,953 358,171 1,246 359,417
AR ETR®D Issue of shares upon
TR EE exercise of warrants 760 3,040 3,800 — 3,800
BITRMHD A A Share issue costs — 6) 6) — 6)
8 @ A% fn Purchase of own shares (164) (618) (782) — (782)
W BE B B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries — — = 1,618 1,618
% B Dividends — (3,681) (3,681) — (3,681)
596 (1,265) (669) 1,618 949
27,814 329,688 357,502 2,864 360,366
INBEMEETR Currency translation differences — 707 707 — 707
F 2% A Profit for the year — 10,994 10,994 (1,677) 9,317
B Al & B Gain on revaluation of
& E s available-for-sale financial
assets = 1,046 1,046 = 1,046
FERAZBAR Total recognised income
X H4agE and expenses for the year — 12,747 12,747 (1,677) 11,070
R=ZZLtHF=H=+—H At31 March 2007 27,814 342,435 370,249 1,187 371,436
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

R-ZZEZERFWA—H

A BT D
TR R

AT R AD A

EEAEE E0)

DB R KA
HE

e=)

SNEEBR B R
F 25 A

FERBA ZWA K
X e

R=-BBXRF=A=+-—H

At 1 April 2005

Issue of shares upon
exercise of warrants
Share issue costs
Purchase of own shares
Capital contribution
from minority interests
Dividends

Currency translation differences
Profit for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year

At 31 March 2006

For the year ended 31 March 2007

ARIEREE ARG
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

LPHBRR

@S Em EnBHE

Share #E PR Minority Total

capital Reserves Total interests Equity

F#E T FE T F#E T F#E T FE T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Ktz#31) (Kt 7#34)
(Note 31) (Note 34)

______ SO ORI OO OO E = G o0, 0

675 2,699 3,314 — 8} felrdl

— (1) (1) — (1)

(563) (215) (268) — (268)

_ — — 1,000 1,000

— (8,181) (8,181) — (8,181)

622 (5,698) (5,076) 1,000 (4,076)

27,218 317,315 344,533 1,627 346,160

= 990 990 = 990

— 12,648 12,648 (381) 12,267

- 18,638 18,638 (381) 18,257

27,218 330,953 358,171 1,246 359,417
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2007

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April
1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, development, manufacturing and distribution of
electronic components, contract electronic manufacturing services and
consumer electronics, and the manufacturing and distribution of personal
computer and digital products. The Group operates mainly in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Japan and Canada.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$).

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 27 July 2007.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention except that certain financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) are measured at fair value, as appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The following standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are mandatory for financial year ended 31 March
2007.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 21 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKFRS 6
(Amendments)

HKFRS 6

HKFRS-Int 4

HKFRS-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans
and Disclosures

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Exploration for
and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

Determining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease

Rights to Interests rising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and

Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in a
Specific Market
Electronic Equipment

— Waste Electrical and

The adoption of the above standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations did not have any significant financial impact

to the Group.

The following new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted. The directors anticipate that the adoption
of these standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
will not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting

policies.
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B 7% iR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—FET+F=HA=+—H 31 March 2007
2. EESTHERBEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(a) REEXE () (a) Basis of preparation (continued)
B g £l BBEBRREN A HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements:
F15% (B3] BAKE Capital Disclosures
ERMBREELN SRIA:BE HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
FT%
ERMBREEL BEHP HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
£8%
Ak (BRMBRE ERABBSHEAE20% HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under
2BZE®) (REBRSES 28 HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
— REETH BREI T2 &% Hyperinflationary Economies
Ak (BRMBRE BAUBREERE 2R HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
REZE®) #E
— REEH
5 (HEGHBERE EMTEHRANTEIR HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
REZE®)
— REZR
Bk (BREBRE PHBERERAE HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
REZE®)
— RBE10%
5% (BEBREBRE ERPEREERNSSN HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
REZE®) —SBEREFERNRS Transactions
— REEN1R
Bk (BEBRMBRE RESHERSE HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
RAEZE®)
—REF1235%
(b) HERE (b) Consolidation
Z? HMBHRERPEARRDE RE I The consolidated financial statements include the financial
NEIHE=RA=T—HIE 2B statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up
i‘% ® to 31 March.
(i) KB LA (i) Subsidiaries
{ENZRN ﬂﬁ?ﬁzﬁ’ilﬁﬁé = Subsidiaries are entities, including special purpose
HUBREEBRZFEEE entities, over which the Group has the power to govern
(BREERENZESE)  —& the financial and operating policies generally
RRAEBEAZERBFEEN accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
FRERE ETELAEEES the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
ZEH S —EER - BRI voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
A R BEEREEZTFE are considered when assessing whether the Group
REBHTER - controls another entity.
WMEARRE BTt EEE Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
FTAREBEZHBREZELLS T control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
A WEZEHERIEZ BE consolidated from the date that control ceases.

LB ARKRE ©
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
expenses directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transactions provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from the equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders therein.
Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of the respective entities’ changes in
equity since the date of the combination. The interests of
minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the
minority’s interests in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity established under a
contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject
to a joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

In the consolidated financial statements, investment in
jointly controlled entity are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of
jointly controlled entity is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation (continued)
(ii) Jointly controlled entity (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transactions provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Accounting policies of the jointly
controlled entity have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use
rights are stated as cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost mainly represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various
plants and buildings are situated for a period of 38 to 69 years.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the period of the relevant leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line or reducing balance methods to allocate cost of
each asset to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment reducing balance 10% to 33%

Motor vehicles reducing balance 15% to 33%

Moulds and tooling reducing balance 15%

straight-line 2%
reducing balance 15%

Plant and machinery held under finance leases are recorded and
depreciated on the same basis as described above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and are
recognised in the income statement.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (continued)

M

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction-in-progress represents factory premises under
construction and moulds and toolings under development and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes construction expenditure incurred and interest and other
direct costs attributable to the construction. Construction-in-
progress is not depreciated, and will be transferred as property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above when the assets concerned are brought
into use.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (“cash-generating units”). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if so designated by management. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if they are either held for
trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determined payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are classified as trade and
other receivables in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial assets (continued)

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, that is the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transactions costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are
presented in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in the income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses
from investment securities.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

Financial assets (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific
inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss which is
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. Since the derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the income statement.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(U]

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivable and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Financial liabilities (including trade
payables) are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the
definition of financial liability and evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is transferred from retained profits
to capital redemption reserve.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan
is a retirement benefit scheme under which the Group
pays fixed contributions on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

The contributions are recognised as employment costs
when they are due and, where appropriate, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those relevant employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

(ii) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrued to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(iii) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as
a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities, net of value-added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts and after elimination of sales within the
Group. Revenue and income is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and collectivity of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(iii) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Leases (as the lessee)

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of
the leased assets or the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in current and non-current liabilities, where
appropriate. The finance charges are charged to the
income statement over the lease periods.

(i) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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31 March 2007

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be
a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are
not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of
directors of the Company. Because of the simplicity of the
financial structure and the current operations of the Group, no
major hedging activities are undertaken by management. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.
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3.

31 March 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States dollars, Canadian dollars, Chinese
Renminbi and Japanese Yen. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group uses certain foreign exchange contracts to
manage foreign exchange risks.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are classified on
the consolidated balance sheet as available-for-sale
financial assets and carry at fair value. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash and credit lines to
meet its liquidity requirements.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from bank
balances and bank borrowings. This risk is managed
through the maintenance of a proper portfolio of deposits
and debts.
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31 March 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-
for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate
quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask
price. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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31 March 2007

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and residual values and therefore depreciation expense in
the future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to
sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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31 March 2007

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights (continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial position and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary
to take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. For the purposes of impairment reviews, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations primarily use
cash flow projections based on five-year financial budgets
approved by management and estimated terminal value at the
end of the five-year period. There are a number of assumptions
and estimates involved in the preparation of cash flow projections
for the period covered by the approved budgets. Key assumptions
include the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, growth rates and selection of
discount rates to reflect the risks involved. Management prepares
the financial budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance
and market development expectations. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections
and changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the impairment
reviews.
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31 March 2007

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses the estimations at each balance sheet
date.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each
balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have
been changed.
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Turnover
Sales of goods

31 March 2007

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

%
Group
—EEt —TER
2007 2006
FHET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,737,449 1,540,139
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31 March 2007

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments:

At 31 March 2007, the Group is organised into three main
business segments: (i) Manufacturing and distribution of electronic
components (“Electronic Components”); (ii) Contract electronic
manufacturing service and consumer electronics (“EMS and
Consumer Electronics”); and (iii) Manufacturing and distribution
of personal computers and digital products (“PC and Digital

Products”).
SHETER
EERBR
ETHEERRR HAEMK
EMS and REBER
Consumer PC and KA &
Electronics Digital Products Eliminations Group

8%t -ZTX 8%t -TTX -B%t - BBt IR
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TEx THAT TEx FET TE=x FEr TErn  TAx
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000

675,017 575,181 400,957 876,317
= 76 = - (285 (5709

675,017 575257 400,957 376,317 (2,852) (5,709) 1,737,449 1,540,139

5, EXBERIBEHR @ 5.
(a) FTERERX (B2 BER :
R-_ZEE+F=A=+—H  £8H
=EEEH AN : (VEFoesERE
REHE (BEFmast) s (f6NETE
XEERBREFHEHEERED : (i)
EAEKREGEDREERLHE (EA
B ES8TEESR) -
ETTEHs
Electronic
Components
BBt ZZEZX
2007 2006
FExz TAn
HK$000  HK$'000
BEH Turnover
EFNEE External sales 661,475 588,641
PHEHE Inter-segment sales 2,852 5,633
664,327 594,274
PHEE Segment results 18,644 16,136
RARKA Unallocated income
AARAX Unallocated expenses
BEXA Finance costs
JEE£EEH  Share of loss of a jointly
ERER controlled entity
MERARZ Income tax expense
RERT Profit for the year

SERRRMRHEERGEERC
B YREERERAEE -

EMEERKRAERAAF 66

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

11,467 13,397 5,940 5,412 36,051 34,945

1813 1,198
(14,223)  (14,899)
(8313)  (3.769)

- (16%)
(6,011  (3570)

9,317 12,267

Inter-segment sales are accounted for at mutually agreed prices
and eliminated on consolidation.
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5.

EXEL T HBER @

(a) TEHEHRX-XBIBER : (F)

BE
PHEE
ROREE

BEE

HitER
ERMRX
REREH

AEREM
EfFRE

i RERR

FE

Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and

amortisation
Impairment of goodwill

5.

Write-down of inventories

Impairment of
trade receivables

DHMEETZERAKEZHE Y

% . HERR
W PR

s R ER
& iR T 2 B3R & R %

RERELRNBEE °

SHMEBETERRAERA Z2HEE

BERMERHIEA -
BE -

‘U]]

g

4

EXAERXBREE  WE -

RAENERRE

ez K

Rkt R L ERE  TRES
BAETWEI B A R WEEZ BN -

31 March 2007

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments: (continued)
AHEFEE
EERBR
ETHEERXR
EfREHN EMS and BAEKREBER
Electronic Consumer PC and 58
Components Electronics Digital Products Group
—E8t _—TTRX BBt _—TTRX 8Bt _—TTN BBt _—TIRX
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
FET FET FET FAT FET FAT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
305,772 253,899 344,857 321,690 96,869 82,853 747,498 658,442
26,015 26,808
773,513 685,250
75,337 68,306 87,544 129,522 38,129 27,080 201,010 224,908
201,067 100,925
402,077 325,833
6,452 3,056 42,305 28,757 85 500 48,842 32,313
4,944 5,564 10,674 8,420 279 561 15,897 14,545
- - 156 - - - 156 -
3,959 3,234 - - - - 3,959 3,234
1,107 492 - - 162 459 1,269 951

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights, inventories,
receivables and operating cash, and mainly exclude investments
and certain corporate assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items
such as taxation, corporate accruals and corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to goodwill, property,
plant and equipment, and leasehold land and land use rights,
including additions resulting from acquisitions through purchases
of subsidiaries.
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5.

EEBNRBER @ 5.

(b) RESBBE - HEIPESR :

A =83 2 o 8RS H5 605 20 fE =
ZHE - U THRERRBRSHME R E X
BHBAMHAXRREEE -

31 March 2007

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments:

The Group’s three business segments operate in four main

geographical locations. The following table provides an analysis

of the Group’s turnover, capital expenditure and total assets by
geographical locations.

] EARMMAX HWEE
Turnover Capital expenditure Total assets
—BEL —EER —EEt —EER —EEL —EER
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
FHET FBTL FHT FBT FHT FBT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EERFEAE  Hong Kong and
Mainland China 550,846 570,209 38,677 31,817 645,805 604,482
JEEM North America 649,542 616,769 81 496 69,870 80,768
BOM Europe 262,445 177,563 - - - —
H A& Japan 230,459 155,665 10,084 - 57,838 -
HipmMHBER Other Asian countries 44,157 19,933 — = — =
1,737,449 1,540,139 48,842 2,8l 773,513 685,250
EEBEEPHEIRE D o Turnover is allocated based on the location of customers.
BERAMAZRBEESREEMER Capital expenditures and total assets are allocated based on the
ERa location of those assets.
H fth 2 6. OTHER INCOME
—EE+ —EFTR
2007 2006
FET F&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
B WA Interest income 1,233 663
BT 88 R Government grants 294 284
e A Rental income 587 535
2,114 1,482
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BEMEET 2RX

BmFE - #HimR

EHmFEEE

BmFE - BB ROEREER

% 2R Bl B <2

o 3t J - 3 {5 R A A

&

— BEWE  BIRRE

— RBEENBEZ
MR EERRE

BETRMIFA (BREEHE)

EEEMER (R —RE
TR A)

e U & 25 BR IR FE B

HitEERMER

7 &R1E

M R RRE R
Rt e AR EEIR

THRMELSEROHES

MTESMIARFTE
(B#) E#E

ERBXR(BH)FE

HERRERAX

I8 ) 32

BEERBRAERX

BEERX

H Al 32

HERA  HERKEHMAX
T — MR R AT B X 45

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Changes in inventories of trading merchandise,
finished goods and work-in-progress
Trading merchandise, raw materials and consumables used
Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
Depreciation
— owned property, plant and equipment
— property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases
Employment benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments)
Impairment loss of goodwill (included in general
and administrative expenses)
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment loss of other assets
Write-down of inventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
and leasehold land and land use rights
Operating lease rental in respect of land and buildings
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative
financial instruments
Net exchange losses/(gains)
Repair and maintenance expenses
Transportation expenses
Travelling and office expenses
Advertising costs
Other expenses

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses

31 March 2007

—EZEt —EER
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(44,842) (12,287)
1,470,057 1,299,303
1,855 1,638
652 455
13,804 13,472
1,441 618
148,828 110,867
156 —
1,269 951

- 340

3,959 3,234
326 318
6,386 7,072
(1,085) 1,349
553 (509)
3,787 4,699
10,002 7,739
23,432 19,967
985 460
74,357 60,691
1,715,922 1,520,377
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—FET+F=HA=+—H 31 March 2007
8. BIRAMAX 8. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
BREEEMEeZETIE/MAX : Employment benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments, consisted
of:
= —ZEER
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
- TE RER Wages, salaries and allowances 127,644 90,723
FRILA Bonuses 4,635 5,229
R A — Pension costs —
FE fRE & defined contribution plans 1,358 1,377
12 A Welfare and benefits 15,191 13,538
148,828 110,867
9. BE/KA 9. FINANCE COSTS
=3 A= —EER
2007 2006
FET FBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITREF B Interest expense on bank loans
RAFAZHMAE wholly repayable within five years 8,165 3,451
BMEHRE 2N EHBMH Interest element of finance leases 148 318
8,313 3,769
A
10. REH 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
RARIEEHREBRENE - EBNFH IR The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
BEARBSEMKZAHERRERBELESR tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the
BEB AT ERTRFIZ17.56% (ZFT R estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
F 1 17.5%) 2 TR EIBEAER - FRKIZKRE Companies established and operate in Mainland China are subject to
B2ARREBHIBRACEMSH  BIEREI3% Mainland China enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% (2006: 33%).
(ZZTZTNF : 33%) - MARMERKIL K EE Companies established and operate in Canada are subject to Canadian
ZARTIBEBEMEKRFAER @ HEZ36% (= income tax at the rate of 35% (2006: 36%). Companies established and
TENF 1 36%) c REARKIYLREEZ QDA operate in Japan are subject to Japanese income tax at the rate of
TR A ABCEMER - BIERE30% o 30%.
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10. FAEBH @

31 March 2007

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

—E2FL —EER
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHHIE - Current taxation:
— BBHNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 2,015 780
— B EMEH — Mainland China enterprise income tax 2,252 1,406
— IMEXMAEH — Canadian income tax 901 994
BEEFEGREZZH Deferred taxation relating to the origination
EA R R (ff7#30) and reversal of temporary differences (Note 30) 843 390
6,011 3,570
AREBEBBRTANRMN ZFER - BERBAEE The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
4RE A A A A B INAE I B R T JEE A 2 theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
ERBiBs =8B T : applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:
—EEt ZEEZTR
2007 2006
FERT FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
% Tt A A Profit before income tax 15,328 15,837
FRIE Th iR AR 5 B Tax calculated at the weighted average domestic
B A 2 Y tax rates applicable to profits in the
MEGE respective places/countries 541 2,427
mARBMZBAZZE Tax effect of income not subject to tax (2,045) (1,599)
AR NF 2 = H Tax effect of expenses not deductible
2B for tax 5,211 671
AERZIBELEHEE Deferred tax assets not recognised 2,548 2,194
HAh Others (244) (123)
B IA 32 Taxation charge 6,011 3,570
RZZETLF=A=+—80 ' EANNEFLH For the year ended 31 March 2007, the weighted average applicable tax
BEB3E5% (ZZTT/RNF : 15.8%) ° @AAIM rate was 3.5% (2006: 15.83%). The decrease in weighted average
BEOHEERTRRERAAAESENBAREERE applicable tax rate arose mainly because of the change in the relative
EN:OR=R =l - profitability of the companies within the Group.
71 aflEmEERAERZAA
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31 March 2007

11. EERERTHRAEME 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
R_ZEZELF=ZA=Z+—HAEAEESF The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for
EZMEmT the year ended 31 March 2007 is set out below:
BRI
Contribution
FERER M1ETEA  to retirement
#¢ Salaries and Discretionary benefit k]
B2 Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HITES Executive directors
ABERE Mr LAU Tak Wan - 3,510 443 162 4,115
BR 150 3% & Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky - 1,201 253 56 1,510
FRELE Mr WAN Chor Fai - 1,300 300 50 1,650
BEEEE Mr MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - 1,300 500 60 1,860
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
EMNEE Mr Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BRERE Mr LIU Ngai Wing 75 - - - 75
BEELE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - - 50
225 7,311 1,496 328 9,360
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L t+FE=A=+—H 31 March 2007

11. EEREHRTHAEMES ® 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) EEMS (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
R-BEERNFZA=Z+—BHAEES The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for
EF2MemT the year ended 31 March 2006 is set out below:

RIKE H5K
Contribution
e k2R ETEL  to retirement
#%  Salaries and  Discretionary benefit BE
EE e Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITEZ Executive directors
ABEEE Mr LAU Tak Wan - 3,510 714 162 4,386
PR 108 3% 22 & Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky — 1,201 408 56 1,665
FRERAE Mr WAN Chor Fai - 1,300 408 50 1,758
BEELE Mr MAK Hon Kai, Stanly — 1,300 500 60 1,860
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
ERNLEE Mr Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BRERE Mr LIU Ngai Wing 50 — — — 50
BEEERE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - - 50
200 7,311 2,030 328 9,869
BEERNAFERERZL MM 2 No director waived any emoluments during the year (2006: Nil). No
(ZEERF ) RAFEHES emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join or as
NS ESEANENeRAEZES compensation for loss of office during the year (2006: Nil). No director
BUHE(CEZERE:T) - EF has been granted or exercised any share option during the year (2006:
MER TRTEEMERE(ZTES Nil).
F:F)
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11.

12.

31 March 2007

EERSRITHAEM S 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) EfUEEHAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AREEEEAREmRETMNALTEIE The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
ME(ZTETAF : WR)ES - = Group for the year include four (2006: four) directors whose
CEHREXHT - B —R(ZTT emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
NE —R)EEFATZHME ST emoluments paid and payable to the remaining one (2006: one)
T individual are as follows:

= 3 A —EER
2007 2006
FET FH#E T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BERH S R HEMER, Basic salaries and allowances 520 519
BB TEAL Discretionary bonus 90 67
BIKE K Pension scheme contribution 24 24
634 610
B 2 BB mT: The emoluments fell within the following band:
A

Number of individual
=22t ZET R
2007 2006
= — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 1

RAFEAR AEREHAL (B
EERHEMET)  UEEMEMMS
ERSMEMEHRERUNHMHE(ZF

TRE B o
NEEEE
&%

AEEBETMARES RERRE : BER
KB FRTER S THEEBES - BIERAG
FhBESHEZEERRBZEED FR
F BHBUEBEESRE -
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12.

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and other employees) as
inducement to join or as compensation for loss of office (2006:
nil).

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.
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12.

PEEFE @
B8 (4)

FEEERAKFEIT  AEELRSEE D FIRE
BB s cEREIZHAEAEK - EE
AR IEAHMAEBREEZ 2HEH - A&
FAEFBREBRZEFTKE - HEZZ
THE=ZA=+—HILtFE  &E%:TET K
& B P E a5 SR 2 4 5K %) & 58,000/% JT
(Z2EERF ) RZEZTELF=A=
+—8  EZET  ZEREEDMZKIEA
AERLREAEBHRKFEFZRENLN A
9,000/ 7T (ZZZ /N : 57,000 7T) °

EREeET  AEERSEENFIZESR
BRAAL (RRAFMEDBESTEGE 2 EE)
BaZRHBR AEERERET 2HZAR
FH&S1,0008TT - ERBEHA—ENHT
BB ENRBAEEA - ARAKREKER
FEES -

i E

BRIPBEDEPIRE - EFEATEKREREEAE
REBRMKET R - EXTEIT - £EEZE
SBZHESBARMAR (BEHSE  =EMEK
TEAL) KI5% R - MEBREEEAETHEAR
HIFEFRB-10% ° FRIA EHFRIN - KEE BRI
XNERERKRE ZEERAE - KEKEHR
KRB BBEHRAEEBRHEZHMRAE -

mEx

AEEFZEMEXNEEREMZZHSE @ B
TETERENEREREFIN - MINEABER
BREE(CPPE AERR - EREREES A
FHZ24.95% (ZTT/NF : 4.95%) IREX 0 B
E RS EMRKE WA BT ZH 294,000/ 7T
(FBER43,700M0 L) o (ZZFTEZEXNF ¢
258,000/ T (8% 5238,600407T) ) °

B &

AEBEZHEBAREHEERAKEF MIEE
BN#EEL S AMRK - HEREET 28 A
#t X F 5,000 H [E| 230,000 H [B (18 5 51 3305
JLZE 2,000 ) REEARESIEE 2R
FHRHEMEHEERESAERSE - 16
BEAEEEERTREB TFTEAEEREE
I 4 B BUR RS R -

12.

31 March 2007

PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

Hong Kong (continued)

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employee make monthly
contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% and 5% respectively, of
the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who have
terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its future
contributions. The unvested benefit so utilised under the scheme during
the year ended 31 March 2007 amounted to approximately HK$58,000
(2006: HK$NIl), and the amount of unvested benefits as at 31 March
2007 that are available to reduce the Group’s future contributions was
approximately HK$9,000 (2006: HK$57,000).

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately
vested in the employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The Group’s relevant employees make monthly
contributions to the plans at approximately 5% of the relevant income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group makes
monthly contribution at approximately 8 to 10% of such relevant income
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contribution. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contributions to the National
Canada Pension Plan (“CPP”) in respect of its employees in Canada
based on the relevant employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain
excluded employment and benefits, at a rate of 4.95% (2006: 4.95%) of
the employees’ salaries subject to a maximum annual pensionable
earnings of HK$294,000 (equivalent to CAN$43,700) (2006: HK$258,000
(equivalent to CAN$38,600)).

Japan

The Group is required to make monthly contribution to the relevant
government organisations for workers’ retirement benefits in respect of
its employees in Japan. The monthly contribution is predetermined by
the relevant organisations in the range of Japanese Yen 5,000 to 30,000
(equivalent to HK$330 to HK$2,000) and the employer discretionarily
determines the amount of monthly contribution for each employee based
on the service years and other conditions. The relevant organisations
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond its contributions.
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13. AEIEREBEEAEAELER 13.

RARZESFEABESH - RAQR TG
WK BN L A20,269,0008 7T (ZEE/NEF -
B F| &233,000% 7T) °

31 March 2007

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$20,269,000 (2006: profit of HK$233,000).

14. IR E 14. DIVIDENDS
—EEL —EER
2007 2006
FETT FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR % HIRR 8 B AR0.0105 7T Interim of HK$0.010 (2006: HK$0.010)
(ZZZRF : 0.010/% L) per share (note (i)
(B z#() 2,787 2,727
BOR R HIRR B & R0.015/8 7T Final of HK$0.015 (2006: HK$0.010)
(ZZZRF : 0.010/% L) per share (note (ii)
(B 2% (ii)) 4,172 2,720
6,959 5,447
Bt - Note:
(i) R-ZEXRF+_F ' ARAIEMHPEHRKE (i) In December 2006, the Company declared an interim dividend of HK$0.01

REIR0.01ETT - & B MEAR R AT & Z AR
B ()RS Bk (i) A R EE R R
0.40B THEEAARSREECIOBTZE
AR R EREE —RRBIREE - EHIE
ST - AR HA AR BB () 3R £ 961,000/ T &

26,070,0000% R EE T ©

(ii) R-BELFELA - ++HHBETZ2EH
EEEFRERYPRETLEEMR0.015%
TC © M TEHRR AR B0 48 I AN B S 3R K R B 1B
BARE  EERBEE—ZTNEF=A=1
—BIEFEINERBRH DI °
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per share. Qualifying shareholders, at their options, could receive the
dividend (i) in cash or (ii) in warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.1 each at HK$0.4 per share on the basis of one
warrant for every seven shares held. In this connection, the interim dividend
was settled by (i) cash of HK$961,000 and (ii) 26,070,000 warrants.

(ii) At a meeting held on 27 July 2007, the Company’s directors proposed a
final dividend of HK$0.015 per share. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained profits during the year ending at
31 March 2008.
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15. BRAER

(U]

(ii)

E- YN

BRERBMNEZREFERRKRRE
168 MR PA R B 817 & B AN 715
BHE o

NG &
w A (FET)

5 R AN AE S 19 2R
BOBE (F)

BRERAN
CEN &%)

#E

AREEREERNE  CHEERTE
AR INFE IS BUEH B - ARER
FEHBEEN 2 RTERRERE
BHEHR - FETREEARTERBR
REMM 2 RBRZEREEL - B
VARERT R FEIA R B (EER] RA R B R
N2 EBFEFHRE) KRB 2N 2 &
B - EXMatEZ2BROBE THERR
RIREFEETEM D HT2RMEB
fELLEL o

15.

31 March 2007

EARNINGS PER SHARE

U]

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue ("000)

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents per share)

(i)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (HK$’000)

—ETt —EEX
2007 2006
10,994 12,648
274,826 272,299
4.00 4.65

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all the Company’s outstanding warrants. A
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding warrants. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the warrants.

—EEt —EER
2007 2006
PiNE - Profit attributable to equity holders
A (FET) of the Company (HK$°000) 10,994 12,648
T 38 R AN ST 15 BX Weighted average number of
BATEE (F) ordinary shares in issue (°000) 274,826 272,299
RREFHAZE (F) Adjustments for warrants (’000) 769 863
5 IR 858 B R =k Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FHHE (F) for diluted earnings per share (’000) 275,595 273,162
EREERT Diluted earnings per share
BN A%) (HK cents per share) 3.99 4.63
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16. BHE

31 March 2007

16. GOODWILL
-
Group
—EZt —EER
2007 2006
FET FH#ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BV BR T F B Opening net book amount 24,811 24,811
JE N E 5 Exchange difference 185 —
NE Additions 239 —
A Impairment (156) —
HRBRmE FE Closing net book amount 25,079 24,811
a2 E A Impairment tests for goodwill

BEARDBEER, & EMR R EK D EHE
RLZAEBRGELEN o

HESRZDRBMEZ50T :

nex Canada
B Hong Kong
= Japan

HEAKERE  BARARNEKRZHEREM
EL DREBEZEXBUE  DEEAKE
ABRFNRTELEM - REELBMH AN
CeEBRRERABEAE - AEAXFARE
METRER - RIREE B I F A B
B BHERBBERANREHMSERNTE
REERE - ERANTRER QBB R R
R 4 B8 20 &P B 5 E LR o

EBEFEDEZIERRET :

%ﬂ 5 Gross margin
# R xR Growth rate
38 =& Discount rate

NEE - BRREE IEDaiwa Microtech Limited
H) &8 - RS E M B R &= E A 89 156,000

T SHERREERRBER -

AENMBEERARAA 78

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to country/place of operation and business segment.

A segment-level summary of the allocation of goodwill is presented below.

=t 3 e —BER
2007 2006

BASHER EDNEY D

HBEM HBER

EE Lid PC and BEfmat PC and
Electronic Digital B Electronic Digital B
Components Products Total  Components Products Total
FEL TET TET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
- 24,840 24,840 — 24,655 24,655
- - - 156 - 156
239 - 239 — - —
239 24,840 25,079 156 24,655 24,811

Goodwill, which arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries in Hong Kong,
Japan and Canada, is allocated to the cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
identified according to the nature of business. The recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined financial budgets based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The pre-tax discount rate
used reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

EBEE mEXREE B EE
Hong Kong Canada Japan
operations operations operations

0% 7.7% 9.3%
0% 2.5% 5.0%
0% 7.5% 5.0%

During the year, impairment losses of HK$156,000 are recognised in
respect of goodwill arising from acquisition of the interests in Daiwa
Microtech Limited following a decision to close down the relevant
operations.
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17. ¥ - BEERRE

£=

R-ZEREMA-A At 1 April 2005

KA Cost

REAMERFEH Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

RERE Net book amount

ZEEXE=A=1+-H Year ended

BR 31 March 2006

HREFE Opening net book
amount

EXER Exchange differences

NE Additions

ERIRER Transferred from
construction-in-
progress

& Disposals

ik Depreciation

HARREFE Closing net book

amount

RZBBEAFZAZ+-H At 31 March 2006

A Cost
LA FE R
and impairment

REFE

Net book amount

Accumulated depreciation

31 March 2007

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

BanE

26 B

RERRE

Leasehold

BE R improvements,

K#E  furniture, RE  BARIE ERIR

#F  Plantand fixtures and Motor Moulds Construction- fag
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles and tooling in-progress Total
FET T T FEL FEL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
61,506 107,867 33,936 5,833 7,289 1,866 218,297
(9,042 (52,942) (16,210) (3,261) (2,489) - (83,944)
52,464 54,925 17,726 2,572 4,800 1,866 134,353
52,464 54,925 17,726 2,572 4,800 1,866 134,353
33 33 74 6 - - 146
- 8,247 2,208 427 2,588 12,144 25,609
6,148 - - - - (6,148) -
- - (305) (51) - - (356)
(1,267) (8,984) (2,342) (489) (1,012 - (14,090
57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662
67,687 116,147 35,644 6,177 9,877 7,862 243,394
(10,309) (61,926) (18,288) (3,708) (3,501) - (97,732)
57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662

79 AENEEERARAQA
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17. Y% - BBRRE @

R=22AFMA-H At 1 April 2006

kAR Cost

R MERFEM Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

REZE Net book amount

“EZLEZR=1-H Year ended

L 31 March 2007

HOREFE Opening net book
amount

ERZEE Exchange differences

NE Additions

Wk B A E Acquisition of a subsidiary

ERIRER Transferred from
construction-
in-progress

irf > Disposals

bk Depreciation

HRREFE Closing net

book amount

R-ZEEtE=A=+-H At 31 March 2007
KA Cost
R E R Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

RREFE

Net book amount

aMEERRAERAA 80
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31 March 2007

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

RamE

%5 HH
RERRE

Leasehold

BERME improvements,

RH#E  furniture, RE HARIA EEIE
#%F  Plantand fixtures and Motor Moulds and Construction- o
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles tooling in-progress Total
FAL FET T T T FAL FAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
67,687 116,147 35,644 6,177 9,877 7,862 243,394
(10,309) (61,926) (18,288) (3,708) (3,501) - (97,732)
57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662
57,378 54,221 17,356 2,469 6,376 7,862 145,662
(20) (52) 27 2 (30) - (73)
- 7,597 3,153 187 5,528 22,113 38,578
748 6,278 637 232 1,950 - 9,845
7,328 - - - - (7,328) -
(232 (14) (88) (280) - - (614)
(1,279) (8,877) (2,262) (430) (2,397) - (15,245)
63,923 59,153 18,823 2,180 11,427 22,647 178,153
75,457 129,857 39,270 6,216 17,325 22,647 290,772
(11,534) (70,704) (20,447) (4,036) (5,898) - (112,619)
63,923 59,153 18,823 2,180 11,427 22,647 178,153
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17.

18.

31 March 2007

x> BRERZE @ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
EFREEFEITET : Net book value of buildings is analysed as follows:
-
Group
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
URES : In Hong Kong held on:
10-504F 2 4 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 6,365 6,559
IR E - Outside Hong Kong held on:
10-50F 2 H 49 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 56,542 49,550
50F LA 2 %) Leases of over 50 years 1,016 1,269
63,923 57,378

HrER X H AR 7,747,000 T (Z BT /NF -
6,941,000/ Jt) 7E $§ & A A 52 AR K& 7,498,000
BT (ZZEZTNEF ¢ 7,149,0008 78) FE— B &
THRAXZLER -

R-_ZEZ+F=ZA=+—H AEERERED
2 TS A% e B 6 3% BR TH )FHE £ 4 8,164,000
JT (ZZZ /N4 © 3,794,000/ L) °

HE LRkt tERE

SENEE TR T EREARENEERS
M3 BREDFESINAOT

18.

Depreciation expense of HK$7,747,000 (2006: HK$6,941,000) has been
charged in the cost of goods sold and HK$7,498,000 (2006:
HK$7,149,000) has been included in general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had plant and machinery with net book
value of approximately HK$8,164,000 (2006: HK$3,794,000) held under
finance leases.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book amounts are
analysed as follows:

&=
Group

—EEL —ETER

2007 2006

FET FAT

HK$°000 HK$’000

YRR FE Opening net book amount 26,093 19,844

NE Additions 180 6,704

5 Amortisation (652) (455)

o} (== Disposals (245) —

HARBR M B Closing net book amount 25,376 26,093
[ D AT Geographical analysis:
LRBH : In Hong Kong held on:

10-504F 2 H %) Leases of between 10 to 50 years 8,110 8,352

IR E - Outside Hong Kong held on:

10-504F 2 # 4 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 17,066 17,288

505 A £ Z &Y Leases of over 50 years 200 453

25,376 26,093

BNKLERNFTARHED BREFABRERN
—RETHRER -

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been included in
general and administrative expenses.
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19. WMEBAAKRE

FE LM
R - R E R

AABZEZHBA

AT

Company

ERGARES —

Interests held directly —

Daiwa BVI Limited

MEEAER —

31 March 2007

Interests held indirectly —

HEHEFERAR
Chiasso Inc

ANEEARAT

Daiwa Associate Ltd

AENBEZRARA A
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company
—EE+ —ZEEZRR
2007 2006
FHET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted shares,
at cost 44,715 44,715
Less: Accumulated impairment losses (10,677) (10,677)
34,038 34,038
AIERMET : Particulars of significant subsidiaries:
AR BETR s R A
R B TELE BRRE AOt
Place of 1t 25 Issued and Percentage EEEEER
incorporation/ Principal place fully paid up of equity Type of TEEHR
establishment of operation share capital interest held legal entity Principal activities
EBRLHES RBREHE 10,000% 7T 100% ARAERA REZRK
British Virgin British Virgin US$10,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
Islands Islands company
EBRLES FE Ve 100% ARAERA MIBE
British Virgin Mainland China us$2 Limited liability Sub-contract
Island company manufacturing
HBRLES BB 2ETT 100% ABRAERA REER
British Virgin Hong Kong Us$2 Limited liability Investment holdings
Island company
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—EE+F=A=+—H 31 March 2007
19. B RARKRE @) 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
B BRAR B IR R
B 3L 1 B TELE BMERA BAk
Place of ity B Issued and Percentage EEEBEER
AF incorporation/ Principal place  fully paid up of equity Type of TEER
Company establishment of operation share capital interest held legal entity Principal activities

BEEERGE — (B

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

Elite Century Holdings Ltd RBRLES Bk 2,500,000% 7T 100% BREFEAH REER
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$2,500,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company
EREEERAA Bk Bk 10,0007 7T 100% BREEAA REZR
Cosmos Power Holdings Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company
HHEFERRA BB BB 2T 100% BREMEAA HETTHEER
Cypress Distribution Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Manufacture of
company consumer electronics
FHETIEARARA Bk Bk BT 100% BRELEAA HETTHEER
Cypress Electronics Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Manufacture of
company consumer electronics
afEE(hE)ERAR Bt Bt 2T 100% BREMEAA REME
Daiwa Associate (China) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Property holdings
Limited company
aNMEEERAA BB BB L@R100E T 100% BBREERF BB RITBURS
Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares Limited liability Management and
HK$100 company administrative
ERZERT service
f& 7 8,000,000% 7T
(Kt (i)
Non-voting

deferred shares
HK$3,000,000

(Note (i)
ANEFERAA B B 2B TT 100% EREMAERA BEF TR
Daiwa Distribution Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Distribution of
company electronic
components

83 AENEEERARAQA
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19. MEBARIRE @ 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
AL, BRAR Fris iR #E
% 3L 1 B TELE BMERA Bk
Place of 1t 25 Issued and Percentage EEEEER
| incorporation/ Principal place  fully paid up of equity Type of TEEER
Company establishment of operation share capital interest held legal entity Principal activities

MERERO— (&)

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

ANERERAA BB BB 10,0007 7T 100% BREERAA REZRK

Daiwa Electronic Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company

ANIXERARA BB BB 5,000% 7T 100% BREEAA REZRK

Daiwa Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company

ANMEEERAA BB BB 4ETT 100% BREEAA REBFLRUREN

Daiwa Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS$4 Limited liability EFEELERS
company Manufacture of

electronic components
and manufacturing
services of electronic

products

ANBEIXERAA BB BB 10,0007 7 100% BREEAA M RE

Daiwa Precision Industrial Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Limited liability Procurement of materials
company

ANERERAR BB BB 5,000% 7 100% BREEAA REZR

Daiwa Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company

ANERERAA BB BB 28T 100% BREEAA ERTRNES

Daiwa System Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Trading of computer
company components

ANES (ER)BERAA BE BE 4ETT 100% BREEAAF REZRK

Daiwa Trading (Guangdong) Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 Limited liability Investment holdings
company

AEMBEEZERERAQA 84
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19. B RARKRE @) 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
B BRAR B IR R
B 3L 1 B TELE BMERA BAk
Place of ity B Issued and Percentage EEEBEER
AF incorporation/ Principal place  fully paid up of equity Type of TEER
Company establishment of operation share capital interest held legal entity Principal activities

BERERG— (&)

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

EMERLEBHRERAA BB BB 4,333,333% 7T 0% EREAARR REZR
Daiwa Yuen Kwong Plastic Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,333,333 Limited liability Investment holdings
Manufacturing Ltd company
Imtec Components Ltd. BB BB 10,0007 T 100% BREFEAH REER
Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Limited liability Investment holdings
company
AREXERAA BB BB 2,000,000/ 7T %% BREAERA HEREHERER
Unity Electrical Industrial Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Limited liability Manufacture of
company electric wire
BEeH (R ERERDA Bt Bt 2B TT 100% BBREERF BREHREE
Unity Precision Electrical Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 Limited liability Trading & manufacture
company of electric wire
FEBREETERAR B B 100/ 7T 100% EREFDA BF TR
Vastpoint Imtec Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 Limited liability Distribution of electronic
Electronics Ltd. company components
IRENEREFRMERAR F F & fift & 745500,000 A & # 100%  BIZEEALA B LR
Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint Mainland China Mainland China Registered Capital Wholly foreign- Distribution of electronic
Electronics Technology Ltd. RMB500,000 owned enterprise components
REETF(TR)ARAR F F 1 & 71,200,000% 7T 100%  BHNEEEELF SEBETHEER
China Faith Electronics Mainland China Mainland China Registered Capital Wholly foreign- Manufacturing of
(Heyuan) Ltd. US$1,200,000 owned enterprise consumer electronics
RERTEFARAR F F e it & A 100%  BIZEEALA BEFEXLEERD
Dongguan Cosmos Mainland China Mainland China AR #2,000,000 Wholly foreign- Contract electronic
Electronics Ltd. Registered Capital owned enterprise manufacture service

RMB2,000,000

85 AENEEERARAQA
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19. fIBRARRE @

AT

Company

MERERO— (&)

AR
L
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

ANMTRMA (L8 BRAF
Daiwa Component (Shanghai)
Ltd.

AMTEMACRIDBRRA
Daiwa Component (Shenzhen)
Ltd.

AMETF TR BRDA
Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan)
Co. Ltd.

AMEREX (TR) ERAF
Daiwa Yuen Kwong Industrial
(Heyuan) Ltd.

AR (ZEB)EFTIEERAA
Daiwa (Zhaoging) Electronics
Industrial Limited

RREBEFERERAA
Dongguan Wafer Semi-
Conductor Co., Ltd.

EMmELEFARADA
Guangzhou Qunli Electronics Ltd.

A EERAER A A 86
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B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

H B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

H B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

i
Mainland China

19.

TELE

it B
Principal place
of operation

F B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

F B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

H B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

B
Mainland China

BETR PR
BMERA Aot
Issued and Percentage
fully paid up of equity

share capital interest held

1t & A&200,000% 7T
Registered Capital
US$2,000,000

100%

1t & 42,000,0007 7T
Registered Capital
HK$2,000,000

100%

1t & 43,600,000% 7T
Registered Capital
US$3,600,000

100%

#E 1 & A1,820,000% 7T 70%
Registered Capital
US$1,820,000

& A
3,384,000% 7T
Registered capital
US$3,384,000

100%

i E A
71,712,0007% 7T

Registered capital
HK$71,712,000

100%

M EAR1,310,000A % 100%
Registered Capital RMB1,310,000

EEEBER
Type of
legal entity

BHN2EEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

BHN2EBEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

BHN2EBEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

RSB RE
Sino-foreign equity

joint venture

BHN2EBEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

BHN2EEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

BHN2EEBRA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

31 March 2007

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TREH

Principal activities

BT TR HEH
Distribution of electronic

components

BT TR HLH
Distribution of electronic

components

ANEFEXLEERD
REESFHEEM

Contract electronic
manufacture service
and manufacture of

consumer electronics

SUERE B
Manufacture of plastic
parts

NEBEF RN
Manufacture of
electronic

components

NEBEF RN
Manufacture of
electronic

components

EFTRHES
Trading of electronic
components
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19.

MEARRE @

)

R

Place of
AF incorporation/
Company establishment
BMERAERG— (8)

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

GiR) BB 2 & i
Mainland China

EnE

Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Ltd.

BEEH (RR)ERERDA i
Unity Precision (Dongguan) Mainland China

Electrical Ltd.

REREEF (ORI)ARAA Bl

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics Mainland China
(S2) Ltd.

EFMANETFERAR i E

Yu Fu Daiwa Electronic Ltd. Mainland China

EFMHEEFERAA HE
Yun Fu China Faith Limited Mainland China

MERTRES
Alberta, Canada

Daiwa Distribution (Alberta) Inc.

MEREE
Fmt s

Daiwa Distribution (B.C.) Inc.

British Columbia,

Canada

19.

TELE
1t %
Principal place

of operation

B
Mainland China

i
Mainland China

Bl
Mainland China

Bl
Mainland China

Bl
Mainland China

YN

Canada

YN

Canada

BRTR Fis R E
BMERE BAL
Issued and Percentage
fully paid up of equity

share capital

1 & A1,550,000% 7T
Registered Capital
US$1,550,000

1 & A1,477,0007 7T
Registered Capital
HK$1,477,000

71 & 742,000,000/ 7T
Registered Capital
HK$2,000,000

1t & A&500,000A R #
Registered Capital
RMB500,000

71 fft & A935,000% 7
Registered Capital
US$935,000

120/0 7T

CAN$120

300,00040 7T
CAN$300,000

interest held

100%

95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

HEEBBRER
Type of
legal entity

BNREREERA
Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

BHNREREERA
Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

BHNREREERA
Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

BHNREREERA
Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

BNREREERA
Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

EREFDA
Limited liability
company

EREFDA
Limited liability
company

31 March 2007

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TEEH

Principal activities

BERREM
Manufacture of

electric wire

HEBE

Manufacture of

electric wire
BT TR HEH
Distribution of electronic
components
BT TR HEH
Distribution of electronic
components
RERCHETF RN

Manufacture and
trading of electronic
components

HERDHEK
ERREFER

Sales and distribution
of computer goods
and electronic goods

HERDHEKER K
EFEM

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

87 AENEEERARAQA
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19. fIBRARRE @

AT

Company

MERERO— (&)

AR
L
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Shares held indirectly — (continued)

Daiwa Distribution

(Nova Scotia) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc.

Daiwa Holdings Inc.

Daiwa Precision Industrial Ltd.

Daiwa Semitron Supplies
(Canada) Inc.

Westpac Holdings Inc.

Westpac Technology Inc.

A EERAER A A 88
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NIENEER
i EE)

Nova Scotia,
Canada

MERZRHEE

Ontario, Canada

MERZ KA

Ontario, Canada

MERZRHEE

Ontario, Canada

MERZ KA

Ontario, Canada

MERZRHEE

Ontario, Canada

MERZ KA

Ontario, Canada

31 March 2007

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TELE

it B
Principal place
of operation

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

meEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

meEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

mEX

Canada

BETR
BRRE
Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

10040 7T
CAN$100

700,00010 7T
CAN$700,000

223,015107T

CAN$223,015

17T
CANS1

17T

CANS1

17T

CANS1

17T
CANS$1

PR
Bok
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EEEBER
Type of
legal entity

BEREFERRA
Limited liability
company

EREFERA
Limited liability
company

BEREFERRA
Limited liability
company

EREFERRA
Limited liability
company

EREFERRA
Limited liability
company

EREFERRA
Limited liability
company

EREFERRA
Limited liability
company

TREH

Principal activities

HERDHEMER
RETES

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

HERDHE MK
EmRETER

Sales and distribution
of computer goods
and electronic goods

BREER

Investment holdings

REER

Investment holdings

=z

HERDHER

EmRkETE
Sales and distribution of

)

=]
[2[s)

I

computer goods and
electronic goods

RENE

Property holdings

REER

Investment holdings
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19. MBARKRE @

Brat

(U]

(ii)

(i)

ERFAIARRZHMBAR - DEARAES
ERAEEEEERREASEAFEES
BFERER  AFEAKERBPOEE M
BRA - ERBHMHEBRAT 2B B
BRA/BBRTTE -

BREREERMNEERFEREEHER
EEEOE  BRIFEBRBREESEA
100,000,000,000,0007% 7T -

BE-TTLF=A=T-ALFEEHE
ARYREADET2EEER -

31 March 2007

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(i)

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result
in particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of ordinary
shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2007.
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20.

HA 1) B 3B
Rl B

HIRBR DS A

BX

31 March 2007

20. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY
&M
Group
—EE+ —ZETN
2007 2006
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Opening net book amount 1 1,639
Impairment loss - (1,638)
Closing net book amount 1 1

SEEBRATRPBRKIZKREE 2 HFEHE

Be 2t

=L

Name

EEATMmEA TEG
BEIXERAA

Daiwa (Southern)
Precision Industrial
Limited

AEMBEEZERERAQA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

90

TEME
Nature
of entity

RINEBRE

Sino-Foreign
cooperative
joint venture
enterprise

The Group has interests in the following jointly controlled entity which is

established and operating in Mainland China:

FEXK mERE RERE
Principal Ownership Voting
activities interest power
BEB Ttk

#2005 F 45 1 )& B 60% 60%
Manufacturing of

electronic

components, and
became inactive
since 2005

BF, EBEs#
Profit/loss
sharing

60%
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21.

ATHREEMBEE

R A—AH

U BE K B A 7l

o]

EHER

BHARTEREAES
(Kta£34)

R=A=+—H

AHHENBEERSRE

LHES

— REFES — B

A H Bl & B AL

— BERs - BB

LA 7T A B AL

ErR@smHEE

31 March 2007

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 1 April

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Additions

Exchange differences

Revaluation surplus credited to equity
(Note 34)

At 31 March

-

Group
—EEt —_ZEETRN
2007 2006
F#ET FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000
141 141
3,010 —
247 —
(104) —
1,046 —
4,340 141

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

Listed securities:
— Equity securities — Japan, denominated
in Japanese Yen
— Equity securities — Hong Kong, denominated
in Hong Kong dollars

Market value of listed securities

-

Group
—EEt —ZTETR
2007 2006
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,126 —
214 141
4,340 141
4,340 141
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22, 78 22. INVENTORIES
£
Group
=22t —EER
2007 2006
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Trading merchandise 119,314 79,907
JR % Raw materials 92,123 82,255
ERH Work-in-progress 21,749 26,356
2K M Finished goods 23,567 13,525
256,753 202,043
EFKAEABERARBREEFREBRREEK The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
7N R #91,558,934,0008 L (Z 2T N F - sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to
1,392,286,000/ 7T) ° HK$1,558,934,000 (2006: HK$1,392,286,000).
E 17 % 18 /& 3,959,000 ;T (Z T T X F Write-down of inventories amounted to HK$3,959,000 (2006:
3,234,000/ L) ' EBIERGABERHEEK HK$3,234,000), which have been included in cost of sales in the
AN o consolidated income statements.
7 B 118,579,000 ;t (= & & X F Inventories amounting to HK$113,579,000 (2006: HK$67,144,000) were
67,144,000 70) A RITEERBEE R LM held under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 26).

& (BraF26) -

23. EWREXIRE 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
-3
Group
—EZt —EER
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE W & 2 AR TE Trade receivables 178,780 189,179
g8 FEMUE ERRTAE B EE Less: provision for impairment (1,612) (902)
177,168 188,277
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23. BWEXRE @ 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
FEW & ERRERIATE®E AR Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
=
Group
—EEt —ETRX
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
77T Hong Kong dollars 52,633 50,963
AR ¥ Chinese Renminbi 35,325 34,043
x£7T United States dollars 43,779 81,694
mEXRTT Canadian dollars 30,296 22,479
H Japanese Yen 16,747 —
178,780 189,179
FEREEREMERLAFERE ° The carrying values of trade receivables approximate their fair values.
EWEXRETEEFNEERR - BERAANE There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables
ERZRFE B TR - as there are a large number of widely dispersed customers.
AEBMZ ABHHEERLERS ' RE—KAH Majority of the Group’s sales are on open account, with credit terms
=TRENTR o BUEXIRIE 2 BRE D TR generally ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
T @ receivables was as follows:
—EZTt —ETRX
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
DRAR+TR Less than 60 days 140,295 127,163
ATRE—B—TLK 60 days to 119 days 30,482 47,170
—A_tXRXEZBATHEK 120 days to 365 days 8,003 14,846
178,780 189,179
HE_ZTLHF=A=1T—HIEFE  SEHK During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group recognised a loss of
51,269,000/ 7T (ZEZ /N F : 951,000/ JT) HK$1,269,000 (2006: HK$951,000) for impairment of its trade
B E XRIEERE - BREBREE —RRITH receivables. The loss has been included in general and administrative
AxH e expenses.
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24, FAWRE  HEREMERK 24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

IE

18 5K IE
HERE
H i & W IR

25. BERAEEEY

B & RIRTT R

ReRASEEBNRATEBEAR

T
AR
ETT
g KR
HE

H A
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RECEIVABLES
£8 AT
Group Company
—EEL —ETERX —EEt —ETERXR
2007 2006 2007 2006
FETT FET FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Prepayments 6,480 8,113 - —
Rental deposits 963 547 - —
Other receivables 4,013 3,642 192 214
11,456 12,302 192 214
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
£m A
Group Company
—EEL ZEER —EEt ZEER
2007 2006 2007 2006
FETT TFET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Cash at bank and on hand 93,432 83,540 52 25

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Chinese Renminbi
United States dollars
Canadian dollars
Japanese Yen
Others

& AF

Group Company
—EEt —EER —EE+t —TER
2007 2006 2007 2006
F#ET FET FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
36,424 23,636 52 25
12,768 12,687 - —
30,070 35,587 - —
11,831 11,034 - —
2,251 528 - —
88 68 — —
93,432 83,540 52 25
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25. RERBAESEEY @ 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
RITFERRBEZBHE - RIEF B RITEFERA Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
Ko EFZIRITHEBTHARE L EHEH deposit rates. The Group’s bank balances denominated in RMB are
T - EBANAREEINE TR ER - 15 deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of these RMB
ZRABEBTHINERE o denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of

funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of the
People’s Republic of China.
4= =%
26. RITER 26. BORROWINGS
£H
Group
—EEL —EER
2007 2006
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE 7 HA Non-current
RITE N Bank borrowings 47,911 5,000
MEAMHEARE Finance lease liabilities 2,466 1,196
__________ 50,377 eeee...B,196
7N HR Current
RITER Bank borrowings 24,221 16,667
RITELER Trust receipts bank loans 113,579 67,144
BmEHERRE Finance lease liabilities 2,536 3,242
_________ 140,336 e......87,058
BEE®E Total borrowings 190,713 93,249
BEERBHOT The maturity of borrowings is as follows:
£8
Group
—sst —EEx
2007 2006
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within 1 year 140,336 87,0583
—FEWMFEA Between 1 and 2 years 23,407 6,196
—FERFA Between 2 and 5 years 26,970 —
190,713 93,249
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26. RITEF »

fEERNR TEBHEK

mT
BRI R
T8 8 %

BITEEER
BRITER
MEHEARE

Hong Kong dollars
Japanese Yen
United States dollars

REEE&BER B KBEEFRF X RnEFH 8 %X

— at fixed rates
— at floating rates

Trust receipt bank loans
Bank borrowings
Finance lease liabilities

ERRERAMEREESRQFEMELD -
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BORROWINGS (continued)

31 March 2007

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

£H

Group
—EZt —EER
2007 2006
FETT FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
182,331 89,125
8,382 —
— 4,124
190,713 93,249

The exposure of borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes and
the weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

&
HK$

5.11%
4.69%
4.99%

—EEL

2007

E7 AH
uss Yen

- 1.15%

£8
Group
=22t ZET R
2007 2006
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,382 —
182,331 93,249
190,713 93,249
—TER
2006
BT E HE
HK$ US$ Yen
4.62% 5.21% =
4.12% — —
4.77% — —

All borrowings are unsecured and the carrying amounts approximate
their fair values.



1% i R MY 5 Notes to the Financial Statements
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/= =+ N
26. RITER ® 26. BORROWINGS (continueq)
SE REHREEF2ONAOT : The Group's finance lease obligations were analysed as follows:
=
Group
—EEt —EER
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
REHEERERE Total minimum lease payments
—F R — Within one year 2,708 3,394
—F_F — In the second year 1,449 1,211
—E=FEFRF — In the third to fifth year 1,131 —
5,288 4,605
B RREE X Less: Future finance charges (286) (167)
5,002 4,438
MEHEEBEZRESTAOT : The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed as follows:
—EZTt —ETRX
2007 2006
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
—FQA Within one year 2,536 3,242
EofF In the second year 1,358 1,196
FE=FFERF In the third to fifth year 1,108 —
5,002 4,438
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27. EEERE 27.

REBDEEB 2N RMRBRERS - R~
BEA=TRERTRK-

e & RRBZRE DT

N AN Less than 60 days
ATRE—B-—ThX 60 days to 119 days
—BA-_tRXE=ZBATHEK 120 days to 365 days

e & ERIBRIA T ¥ ALK :

T Hong Kong dollars
AR Chinese Renminbi
ET United States dollars
mEeXxT Canadian dollars

H Japanese Yan

A EERAER A A 98

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2007

TRADE PAYABLES

Payment terms with majority suppliers are on open account. Certain
suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables was as follows:

-
Group
= —TERX
2007 2006
FHET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
146,646 174,146
26,543 19,044
6,988 10,202
180,177 203,392
Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
&5
Group
=22t —EEX
2007 2006
FET FrET
HK$°000 HK$°000
39,941 60,931
16,578 19,157
61,756 98,886
34,816 23,223
27,086 1,195
180,177 203,392
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28.

29.

30.

31 March 2007

PEBt & A R H fth FE{F RRIB 28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
-3 AT
Group Company

—EEt —ET X —EEL —ET X
2007 2006 2007 2006
FET FH#E T F#ET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
& 35 & RFEAL Accruals for salaries and bonuses 10,581 9,026 = =
T8 U 3% Receipts in advance 1,659 2,204 = =
EEEE A Accrued operating expenses 10,918 6,837 354 259
H h 1 K Other payables 552 413 - —
23,710 18,480 354 259

R-ZFEZ+F=A=+—H8 SEEEREHR
METINEL R AL - RZTTLF=A=+
—H®KR1TE 2 BB € 7 AR87,126,000% 7T
(ZZ T N4 : 23,400,000/ 7T) °

EEFT S

ERAERMNIHRANRAEELARERER
B - MRER A KR — R EE - AR
RBRERSHEELELERSHEERRE
o REEERBRLZE&R  REEEZE
RN

29.

30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts to sell/purchase US Dollars. The notional principal
amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at
31 March 2007 were HK$87,126,000 (2006: HK$23,400,000).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The balances shown in the consolidated balance sheet are,
after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

=
Group
—EFt =
2007 2006
FET FA&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BELEBIHEE - Deferred income tax assets,
+Z@AKKE to be recovered after more than 12 months 701 1,088
BEEMRBEEE Deferred income tax liabilities,
Rt+_@A%BBE to be settled after more than 12 months (5,015) (4,559)
EEB IR A EFE Net deferred income tax liabilities (4,314) (3,471)
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30. EEMBH @

ELEHRBEEEHWAT
R A—H

ERmRXE (Ha10)

R=A=+—H

FRARERBAEERBEZ ZE) (BFE—HH

Ml 2 FEERIKEHAT) 20T

FEREBHEE

REA—H
ERER X

R=A=+—H

FEAEBE A &

REA—H
ERHEEH (LER)

R=A=+—H
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30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement on deferred income tax account is as follow:

At 1 April

Charged to income statement (Note 70)

At 31 March

%5

Group
—EE L —ZTER
2007 2006
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(3,471) (8,081)
(843) (390)
(4,314) (3,471)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of

balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April
Charged to income statement

At 31 March

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 April
Charged/(credited) to income statement

At 31 March

i
Tax losses
= ZET R
2007 2006
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,619 2,754
(469) (1,135)
1,150 1,619
R B 18 7 B
Accelerated tax depreciation
—EEt ZET R
2007 2006
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,090 5,835
374 (745)
5,464 5,090
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30.

EERER @

EIEFRIEE EE Ty A FE AR A B 15 F 25 AT 5 1B AR 2R
JE ER T 0 ) B4 3R T BE P A5 88 2 BB B 1R R RE
R oo ANEE I E LTI E 498,510,000 T (=&
TN ¢ 5,962,000/ T) BRELCH BEELN
38,452,000/ 7T (Z T Z /5 4F : 26,794,000/
TT) ¢ UL SR TE B 1R A] 7 B S R 8H A TE IR
A R-_ZBELFE=F=1+—08 ' BFHEES
1£718,562,000% T * R T ——E_F—
PUS JE i+ & 19,890,000/ 7t 7] £ [R 2 4
HIE R 2B BBA -

HEEREHE

RZZBZLF=A+ARH  2EARKRKE
BR(PEARAMBEZEMSTUR) ([FE%E
FREED - BZZEENF—A—BBEX -
EXCHAUNECEMRSHEZTE  IRA
REHBE_TELF=A=+—"BLLZ2HK
BREREATE -

MEEMSTARTPAEERAGANE - HKE
ARG ST R A FE B B AR R R RIS B 0 B
BRRAM o SRR AMEMMRR - A&
BHFGESE (WA) XEERGHEE -

30.

31 March 2007

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$8,510,000 (2006: HK$5,962,000) in respect of
accumulated losses amounting to HK$38,452,000 (2006:
HK$26,794,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. As at 31 March 2007, accumulated tax loss amounting to
HK$18,562,000 is expiring from 2011 to 2014, while the remaining
balance of HK$19,890,000 can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
against future taxable income.

New Corporate Income Tax Law

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new
CIT Law”), which will become effective from 1 January 2008. The directors
have assessed the impact of such new CIT Law and consider that the
new CIT Law has no material financial impact to the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The new CIT Law provides that further detailed measures and regulations
on the determination of taxable profit, tax incentives and grandfathering
provisions will be issued by the State Council in due course. As and
when the State Council announces the additional regulations, the Group
will assess their impact, if any, and this change in accounting estimate
will be accounted for prospectively.
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31. BAX — XA F 31. SHARE CAPITAL — COMPANY
—E2t —ETR
2007 2006

BB EE Rih 88

Number of Number of

shares shares
T FHET TR FHET
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000

JETE — Authorised —

TERERAE0ETT Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000

EETREE - Issued and fully paid —

TAEREREEI0B T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
R®EA—H At 1 April 272,175 27,218 265,963 26,596
IR 17 3 17 B AT 0 SR AR A RE Issue of shares upon exercise

(Kt a0) of warrants (i) 7,605 760 6,746 675

BRI (A2t (i) Purchase of own shares (i) (1,640) (164) (534) (53)

W=A=+—H At 31 March 278,140 27,814 272,175 27,218

Bt ot - Notes:

[0) RZZTZTLtF=A=1+—HILHHE - (i) During the year ended 31 March 2007, 7,605,766 (2006: 6,746,799)
7,605,766/ R (= T T X F warrants were utilised to subscribe for 7,605,766 (2006: 6,746,799)
6,746,799) B 2 E#B77{# - % AR 87,605,766 shares, at a subscription price of HK$0.40 to HK$0.50 per share (Note
BERED (ZZTTNEF 1 6,746,799) © RIEEH 33).

FR%0.40/8 T E0.505% 7T (A17#33) °

(ii) RZZTTLF=A=+—HILHHE ' 2FE (ii) During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company repurchased
B 1,640,000 B H (=TT A & - 1,640,000 shares (2006: 534,000) for approximately HK$782,000 (2006:
534,000) @ #£49782,0008 L (Z TN F : 268,000). These shares were subsequently cancelled.

268,000/ 7T) ° &L R EBUE °
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31.

32.

31.

BA&R — R2QF @)
BERAGEE
X5 EH Date of repurchase
April 2006
May 2006
June 2006
July 2006

August 2006
September 2006
October 2006
January 2007
February 2007
March 2007

BERBKRE

ARFREEBRBREE - AR AAEE

ZEE (BEARRZATES) K H BN
REARAZBND - ERZUARNARERD

BITRARE (T RERTEBREMNET 2
Be1n) 30% B[R - % BB B HETT (LB 5 i AN A 7]
ZEZEEET  AO)ARFEERORERERT
BzWmE : (ZEZRRTEREAMAEERS
BARA R 2 FHRTE ¢ h(i)d 2 75
ZHEEZRKROIOET  ZENBRSERE -

HE_TTLF=RA=+—H AAAHEH
EBERECEERF T NRIZETLF=
A=+—8" ZK"T*EEEHEE%&%(*TT
NE B R=FTELF=H=+—8 "
*ﬂ‘ﬂiﬁ@iz,ﬁﬁﬂxﬁé(_? ENFE F) o

32.

31 March 2007

SHARE CAPITAL — COMPANY (continueq)

BRRORXE
Number of Price per share
shares i & EE N &EE
repurchased Lowest Highest
‘000 HK$ HK$
32 0.520 0.530
148 0.490 0.510
32 0.475 0.485
40 0.465 0.465
390 0.445 0.480
426 0.465 0.495
18 0.470 0.480
130 0.475 0.490
192 0.475 0.485
232 0.475 0.495
1,640 0.445 0.530

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has an employee share option scheme, under which it
may grant options to employees (including executive directors of the
Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum
of 30% of the nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued upon
exercise of employee share options. The exercise price will be determined
by the Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the
options, (ii) an average closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options, and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2007
(2006: nil). No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2007 (2006: nil). No share options were outstanding as at 31
March 2007 (2006: nil).
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33.

El_li

IR

gllf

ESill=h TEEH

Date of grant Exercise period

—TTRF_R i B o=

—+&H E-_TT\E-A-+WAH

25 February 2005 25 February 2005

to 24 February 2008

—EELEA “ZZ+E-—F-t=H

—+=H E-_Z——%-A-+—-H

23 January 2007 23 January 2007

to 22 January 2012

RZBZRAF=A=+—HIFE ' AR
728,843,209k RAXHEAE + Al R F #R0.50/% T
REEBE —RSBRAEAMEI0BIT 2D ° R
BERAINR_ZFZTHAF_A-—+HAZ_ZFZT
NEZAZ+TWMBIE - HIE=—TTRF=A
=+—H 1,279,706/ R #E i B 41T -
AR EE1,279, 706k ARl 2 Bk fn - BRELD
640,000/ T °

RZBZLF=A=+—HIFE ' AR
T 26,070,000k RAXHEFE + AI R F#R0.40% IT
REEBE —RSRAEMEI0BIT 2D ° R
RERAINR-_ZZELF—A=ZF+=AE=_Z—
—F—RA=+=RHf1E -

RNEE 7,605,766 RRIER (ZTZTNF ¢
6,746,799) B 171F + LAFREE7,605,766/% 2 &
2D (ZZTENE ¢ 6,746,799) @ AREY
3,800,000/ 7t (=ZZZT /X F : 3,374,000/
JT) °
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33. WARRANTS

BERTHE HHOEHE
REE B4 Granted Utilised R
Subscription Beginning during during End of
price of the year the year the year the year
HK$0.50 20,816,704 = (7,677,766) 13,238,938
HK$0.40 - 26,070,000 (28,000) 26,042,000
20,816,704 26,070,000 (7,605,766) 39,280,938

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company issued 28,843,209
warrants, each of which can subscribe for 1 share of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.50 each. The warrants are
exercisable from 25 February 2005 to 24 February 2008. Up to 31
March 2005, an aggregate amount of 1,279,706 warrants were utilised
to subscribe for 1,279,706 shares in the Company for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$640,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company issued 26,070,000
warrants, each of which can subscribe for 1 shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.40 each. The warrants are
exercisable from 23 January 2007 to 22 January 2012.

During the year, 7,605,766 (2006: 6,746,799) warrants were utilised to
subscribe for 7,605,766 (2006: 6,746,799) shares in the Company for
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$3,800,000 (2006:
HK$3,374,000).
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34. & 34. RESERVES
(a) £ HE (a) Group
AR ERHH
BEERRE
R g3t Available-for-
BERH HERE sale financial
ROBE BREH) Share  Cumulative 3% i i) assets REEF
Share Capital redemption translation Statutory  revaluation Retained @zt
premium  reserve (ii) reserve adjustments  reserve (iii) reserve profits Total

TET TEL TEL T TEL T TEL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE2E F¥MA-A As 1 April 2006 201,838 41,201 268 1,977 90 - 85,579 330,953
KEE T Profit for the year - - - - - - 10,004 10,994
NERE Translation adjustments - - - 707 - - - 707
RAETERITE Issue of shares upon

RREE exercise of warrants 3,040 - - - - - - 3,040
RIAEITRA Share issue costs (6) - - - - - - )
El ) Purchase of own shares (618) - 782 = = = (782) (618)
AHHERBEE Galn on revaluation of

EEEERS avallable-for-sale financial assets = = = = = 1,046 = 1,046
k& (Hizt14) Dividends (Note 14)

B Cash - - - - - - (3,681) (3,681)

RIRHEL () Warrants (i) 1,826 - - - - - (1,826) -
RoEZLE At 31 March 2007

ZA=+-H 206,080 41,201 1,050 2,684 90 1,046 90,284 342,435
BRI — Representing —
RIERBRES Proposed dividend 4172
LY Others 86,112

90,284
—

R4 g3t
BERH HERE
RAEE  ERREI Share  Cumulative B4 (iii) REEA
Share Capital redemption translation Statutory Retained Fohy
premium reserve (ii) reserve  adjustments reserve (iii) profits Total
Fib7 Fh7 Fh7 T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z2F2RFMA-A At 1 April 2005 199,355 41,201 - 987 90 81,380 323,013
REEEF Profit for the year = = = = = 12,648 12,648
NERE Translation adjustments - - - 990 - - 990
R ERITR Issue of shares upon
AREE exercise of warrants 2,699 - - - - - 2,699
ERHKK Share issue cost (1) = = - - - (1)
BERHRE Purchase of own shares (215) - 268 - - (268) (215)
R Dividends - - - - - (8,181) (8,181)
R=2BxE At 31 March 2006
EfET= 201,838 41,201 268 1,977 90 85,579 330,953
BRMT — Representing —
RERBRE Proposed dividend 2,720
Efh Others 82,859
85,579
—
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T +FE=HA=+—H 31 March 2007

34. #E» 34. RESERVES (continued)

(a) £8| (&) (a) Group (continued)
Haz - Notes:
(i) D REEEARREEEAK (i) Certain shareholders had elected to receive their dividends in
B oo RREFRITHBULEM T warrants. Refer to Note 33 for the details of the warrants issued.
831
(ii) ARz ARFRER/ARRIRITZ (if) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between

BOEERERER-NANEOFEE
ERBETARANMERRKRA
HEMEZZR  NER_-_TTF

the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries

E=A=+—BMEEEANERYR transferred to the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation
A% 7N T 8 1M 2 4E /9 & #751,594,000 in 1994, plus the credit of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as
BT e a result of a reduction of the Company’s share capital took place

during the year ended 31 March 2000.

(iif) FEAEZHEARZAE AR (iii) Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be used
& AELHEARNBH AR ZE to offset future losses or increase in capital of the subsidiary.
B BEREELE BN B
DNEIER °
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—EE+F=A=+—H

34. #E»

(b)

ENN

31 March 2007

34. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

B 43 B8
Bk
1255 8 Share BABER() RE &
Share redemption  Contributed Retained # st
premium reserve surplus (i) profits Total
FHET FETT TE T FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZZEFMA—H At 1 April 2006 201,838 268 72,309 5,077 279,492
REFERF Profit for the year - - - 20,269 20,269
BIRH Issue of shares upon exercise
of warrants 3,040 — — — 3,040
% 19 24T AR Share issue costs 6) - - - 6)
A% 1 B 2] Purchase of own shares (618) 782 — (782) (618)
BB (HiaF14) Dividends (Note 14)
3 4 Cash - - - (3,681) (3,681)
RBIRIEE Warrants 1,826 - - (1,826) —
R-ZBELHF At 31 March 2007
=H=+—H 206,080 1,050 72,309 19,057 298,496
AR Representing:
R KRB Proposed dividend 4172
HAth Others 14,885
19,057
“TZTREFEMA—H At1 April 2005 199,355 — 72,309 13,293 284,957
$ FEAR Profit for the year - - — 233 233
BT Issue of shares 2,699 — — — 2,699
BITROD KA Share issue costs (1) — — — 1)
% 1 B 2] Purchase of own shares (215) 268 — (268) (215)
) Dividends - — - (8,181) (8,181)
R-ZEARE At 31 March 2006
=H=+—H 201,838 268 72,309 5,077 279,492
AR Representing:
R KBRS Proposed dividend 2,720
Hih Others 2,357
5,077
Kiat - Note:

RABZBABRBERR— NI
MESARAARFTZROEE
F PA R #2 Daiwa BVI Limited 2 2 17
TRREREWNBAREEFEMSE
ZEFE O MER-_ZTTTF=F=
+— B BRFEEANBEERRAEE
mE £/ & & 51,594,000 7T °

BREBRE-NN—FREDE - &
ABBRAI DR FRE « ERFTEE
ﬁﬁﬁ?}ﬁﬁiiﬁﬂﬁg AR
P DIR ¢ 2(i)D K 18 T RE N 25
BEBz BEBAMEEFEERE
BEREZBTRARRKRNG & E 22
% o

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued ordinary shares of Daiwa BVI Limited
and the value of net assets of its underlying subsidiaries pursuant
to a group reorganisation in 1994, plus the credit of
HK$51,594,000 from share capital as a result of a reduction of
the Company’s share capital took place during the year ended
31 March 2000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or make after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.
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—FFLFE=A=1—A

31 March 2007

35. KEBEERER 35. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) RBABRFEREEL RS (a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash
(fid) RAFEAGTER (outflow)/inflow from operations
= 3 A —TERX
2007 2006
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 753 BT &2 7 Profit before income tax 15,328 15,837
I — Adjustments for —
FEHA Interest income (1,233) (663)
FERX Interest expense 8,313 3,769
b R+ b {55 AR AR 5 Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights 652 455
W WERZERTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15,245 14,090
EEEA Impairment loss of goodwill 156 -
& Uk & 2 AR TH AE B Impairment of trade receivables 1,269 951
EFRE Write-down of inventories 3,959 3,234
HEYE - H2E  RELLKR Loss on disposal of property,
T R b AR EE plant and equipment, and leasehold land
and land use rights 326 318
HEEHERER Impairment of a jointly controlled entity - 1,638
HtRAEEMMER Impairment loss of other long-term assets - 340
ERMITETARAFE Fair value (gain)/loss on
(B&) BB derivative financial instruments (1,085) 1,349
42,930 41,318
EEAAREEH Changes in working capital:
rE Inventories (35,453) (17,131)
fE U & F BRIR Trade receivables 60,069 (34,537)
BRAFIE - Be REA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
J& e kA 3,426 3,351
FEA & R IR Trade payables (93,895) 41,569
FETRE B L Hb i A4 Payable for purchase of land use rights (5,121) 5,121
ENERREMBEMNFKIE  Accruals and other payables 948 (3,468)
g 2R/ (Rd) Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations
A R (27,096) 36,223
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—EE+F=A=+—H

35.

ma

(b)

(c)

BERER »®

EReREREBRA - HEWHE - #
BRRREUAR LK L i 6E AR A
BRERE:

31 March 2007

35. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

(b)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment, and leasehold
land and land use rights comprise:

—ZEZ2t —EER
2007 2006
FER FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BR M B Net book amount 859 356
HEWME  HeRRMEKR  Loss on disposal of property,
o+ 3 R+ b {5 AR A plant and equipment, and leasehold land
E1E and land use rights (326) (318)
HEWME  BBERZER Proceeds from disposal of property,
o+ R b {5 R A plant and equipment, and leasehold land
Fr18 518 and land use rights 533 38

I i Daiwa Sound Company
Limited ([DSC]) :

RZZETEARFAA AEBEKEDSC
Ao Z2A+—#Ez - DSC {t EW Y\ 5=
HETHHERTRZESREEE
% eR-_BEEXNFLtA—RBE=-_ZZT
+tE=ZA=+—08 mUBEKAEE
# % 171,579,000/ 7T W & &
5,214,000/ BB F1E - IMRIKE S
ZETAFONA—BEE  £EKE
#% A& 232,216,000 & T ; MO AT Z
E518 745 55,972,000 7T - ELEESEED
BEEESTHRAEREARNE
ARIMFEENRRBLEEEEEN
AFEAER =TT FNA—HiE
BEERTEEMBRAEETE B
M BEREMEENHEBELE -

(c)

Acquisition of Daiwa Sound Company Limited (“DSC”):

In June 2006, the Group acquired 52% interest in DSC, a
company engages in the trading and manufacturing of speaker
elements and components. The acquired business contributed
revenues of HK$171,579,000 and net loss of HK$5,214,000 to
the Group for the period from 1 July 2006 to 31 March 2007. If
the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2006, Group revenue
would have been HK$232,216,000; loss before allocation would
have been HK$5,972,000. These amounts have been calculated
using the Group’s accounting policies and by adjusting the results
of the subsidiary to reflect the relevant depreciation and
amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair
value adjustments on the relevant assets had applied from 1
April 2006, together with the consequential tax effects.

109 BN EERARLQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% ¥R 3R B R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—FFLFE=A=1—A

35.

RERERER @

(c)

31 March 2007

35. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)
I # Daiwa Sound Company (c) Acquisition of Daiwa Sound Company Limited (“DSC”):
Limited ([DSC]) : (&) (continued)

WEZEEFERBEFBOT :

WEEE :

YES S ]
AHHENBEE
&

JE U 2 3R B IR

H A & U 3R IR
ReRBeEEY

faE

JE 1 2 R AR IR
BN EREEAM
FE& 5t 3R IR
DERR R E

Bk

BEREBRKBER

SR
e

WHEDSCEA 2R &
MHFE DT

RAERE
B BAZRE
MRS ER

WRERT B~ R E &
Z B & R

afNEEERERRAXAE 110
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Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Borrowings
Trade payables
Accruals and
other payables
Minority interests

Goodwill

Purchase consideration and cost of acquisition

Satisfied by:
Cash

Analysis of the net cash outflow in
respect of the acquisition of DSC:

Cash consideration
Less: Cash and cash
equivalents acquired

Net cash outflow in respect of
the purchase of subsidiaries

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

FET
HK$°000

9,845
3,010
23,216
50,229
2,580
1,632

(12,470)

(70,680)

(3,991)
(1,618)

1,753
239

1,992

1,992

FET
HK$°000

1,992

(1,632)

360
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—EE+F=A=+—H 31 March 2007
35. MEBREMER @ 35. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)
(d) FRERS (d) Non-cash transaction:
RZZZLE=A=+—HILHH - During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group financed
SENRMEBEYME KIRZEAR acquisitions of certain property, plant and equipment by new
3,758,000/ 7T (ZTZ/NF « THIT) finance leases of HK$3,758,000 (2006: Nil).
36. &AiE 36. COMMITMENTS
(a) EREE (a) Capital commitments
REEAGBXRA  AKEE FHFE The Group had the following capital commitments not provided
BAREERGTIRER - for at the balance sheet date:
L |
Group
-2t —ZTETR
2007 2006
F#ET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BRI BRETIRER Contracted but not provided for

BEMZE H®RX purchase of property,
B plant and equipment 13,804 3,973
(b) EERNRE (b) Operating lease commitments
R-ZTEZLF=ZA=+—8 ' HR At 31 March 2007, the future aggregate minimum lease payments
HZWAERBEIAHMEZEERD in respect of rented office premises under non-cancellable
W EACEERNRERE SN operating leases were as follows:
U
L |
Group
—EEL —TER
2007 2006
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EF—FR Not later than one year 5,911 8,25
E_FEERFR Later than one year and not later than five years 8,245 7,172
14,156 10,497
TiEME SRz EEHRH— MK AEH Generally, the Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 4
FEBALF - years.
R-EBEERER_ZETL+FE=F=+ The Company did not have any significant commitment at 31
—H - RAERBERZAERE - March 2006 and 2007.
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31 March 2007

37. EREALRS 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RZTZT+F=H=+—H - Leading Trade As at 31 March 2007, Leading Trade Limited owns 22.63% (2006:
Limited }2 China Capital Holdings Investment 22.02%) of the Company's shares and China Capital Holdings Investment
Limited% BI#E B A A 7]22.63% (Z T T/ 4F - Limited owns 25.96% (2006: 19.17%) of the Company's shares. These
22.02%) % 25.96% (ZZTZ/NF : 19.17%) f% two companies are under the control of the Company's directors, Mr.
o WMEARYHARESZBELERR Lau Tak Wan, and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky.

198 7% 2 -2 ] o
MASEEFAEFEERAB ZFMKESHHA Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
FeEESEEEE - BALERE member of its key management personnel or their close family members
BERTEIRZMANERE - AAREEMZ has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over
FZEHRMEATE - AZE ARSEERE the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
AT - HBEALTHUEEANELS - where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
(a) x5 (a) Transactions
LNTAETZEHEXSIZRE - UAES The following is a summary of significant related party
Bz —ME%: transactions, which were carried out in the normal course of the
Group's business:
£8
Group
= 3 A —EER
2007 2006
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
gEHEHS NS Operating lease rental paid
RAE AL to a related party:
361 Alden Inc. 361 Alden Inc. 1,238 1,229

361 Alden Inc./ 215 38 % & K& BR 158 5%
ZE(RRRES) HRAHEE - 2814
ERSHEHAHERBEARTE °
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361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and
Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company. Operating
lease rental expense is determined at rate mutually agreed
between the parties.
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L t+FE=A=+—H 31 March 2007
37. EREALIRS @ 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Ff B A B &R 58 (b) Balances with subsidiaries
KAQF]
Company
—EEt —EER
2007 2006
FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
eGR4 Balances with subsidiaries
— & W FfY /B & R 38 — Amounts due from subsidiaries 292,423 272,692
WEARERAEER  2ERAR The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
BREFERER - bearing and are repayable on demand.
(c) TEEE R (c) Key management compensation
k-
Group
—EFt =
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
e KoEEh Salaries and allowances 8,056 8,030
TE4L Bonuses 1,586 2,097
BRE — REMFKETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plan 352 352
9,994 10,479
118 ANEEERAR A A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has, in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), adopted the
New Share Option Scheme, as approved by the Shareholders of the Company
at the Annual General Meeting held on 18 August 2005.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme is set out

as below:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to Participants for their contribution to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and to

attract human resources for the growth of the Group.
2. Who may join

On and subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme and the
requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board may offer to grant an Option

to any Participant as the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

The basis of eligibility of Participants to the grant of any Options shall
be determined by the directors from time to time on the basis of their

contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

3. Maximum number of Shares

(a) The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%

of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
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3.

BRT2BEROHE (&)

(b)

BB S R AR R 2 EREAM
BT B R H 2 28U (3Lt
i = I A B HE 12 6RO 0B B AT 8 %
NN A SO R e A S
EVERE 2 B ATEM A BT Z K
MBEE AXTEBEANLTBRARR
RmB B RS 2 HE BITRD
210% ([—RREHEI ER]) °

AARARBERRERRASG LHAE
B MRETE ERRRE LR
IR A R R MR R AR R AT
8| M AR B 2 AR AF A B A i =t U 8
BHZ2BBRIEETRMAETZ
B #e  TREBENZ ERELAE
Z BABEBETRMZ10% ¢ M HZ
ERE - REFBRESE RARQF
Z AT E b B A ET S U 2 B B R
2 BB i (B R 3% R B i et 8 )t
AR B 2 AEFE A B AR A & R
I8 Batil  CIEEXCTRZE
B & et EER -

AR E AR £ TR R AR R ¥
BRHERBRERNBRRRNS ESTHE
RHEE Rt LRI ER)
X ()R P ERR 2 iR T AR EE
SR EMABAEREE 2 ARE -

SHARE OPT|0N SCHEME (continued)

3. Maximum number of Shares (continued)

(o)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company) to
be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the New

Share Option Scheme (the “General Scheme Limit”).

The Company may refresh the General Scheme Limit from time
to time by obtaining approval of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting and the issue of a circular in compliance with
Listing Rules to the shareholders of the Company in connection
therewith, provided that the total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the limit as “refreshed” must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the limit
and for the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”, options
previously granted under the New Share Option Scheme or any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option

scheme of the Company) will not be counted.

The Company may issue a circular in compliance with
Listing Rules to the shareholders of the Company and seek
separate approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting to grant Options beyond the General Scheme Limit or, if
applicable, the limit referred to in (c) above to Grantees specifically

identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
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SHARE OPT'ON SCHEME (continued)

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled or outstanding options) to each Participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the time the Option is granted to the participant (the “Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of such further grant, shall be
subject to the issue of a circular in compliance with Listing Rules to the
shareholders of the Company and the shareholders approval in general
meeting of the Company with such Participant and his associates

abstaining from voting.

Grant of options to connected persons

(a) Any grant of Options under the New Share Option Scheme to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-executive

Director who is the Grantee of the Options).

(b) Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme(s) of the Company in the

12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number

of Shares in issue; and
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SHARE OPT|0N SCHEME (continued)

Grant of options to connected persons (continued)

(b) (continued)

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5

million;

such further grant of options must be approved by the shareholders of
the Company. The Company must send a circular in compliance with
Listing Rules to the shareholders of the Company. All connected persons
of the Company must abstain from voting on the relevant resolution at
such general meeting, except that any such connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution at the general meeting provided that his
intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any vote taken at the

meeting to approve the grant of such Options must be taken on a poll.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

A consideration of HK$10 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant
of an Option. An offer for the grant of an Option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter of the offer is duly
completed, signed and returned to the Company with payment of

HK$10.00 as consideration within 28 days from the date of offer.

Exercise of an Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme at any time during the five-year period commencing
immediately from the date of grant and expiring on the last day of the

five-year period.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and are stated in the offer of
grant of Options to a Participant, there are no minimum period for which

an option must be held before it can be exercised.

117 BB EEZERAR QA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Share Option Information

R RERE )

10.

®EBE

BIEESTRERRASEEREE TER
R R - BRI EERITERIRNBRAER
SERBREMBAERENRERLR -

R0 ZEE

MBREGFEZRORBRBEHEFTRELRN
REBRTHRBMZ2EA @ ERBETSER
T =FhzREE :

(@) REERTEEREZA (RAEARRS
B)BXMERRER LA KN
W (g

(o) REZKREHR FERER #2500 E
RHANBIAEEMER LFTHZ
iyl Bz FHE: &

() B Ap E{E e

40 =z b i

RITEEREMEE 2B - ARARBER
B2 ARIAR —Y)ARE PR ] - 3 B AL 3
BROERAERTZARRMRAROEZERE
B R ERBEASERESNROEEZ
Bt ERIR ML 2 — IR B E M DK -
M2 Bt R BRD AL 2 A B3 2 "o 8% B BT 5 M
R FRFRIRN A H 2 ERR S REMLD
& R BR S o

A EZRABER-RAA 118

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

SHARE 0PT|0N SCHEME (continued)

10.

Performance target

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and are stated in the offer of
grant of Options to a Participant, a Participant is not required to achieve
any performance targets before any Options granted under the New

Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Subscription price for Shares

The Subscription Price under the New Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the directors and notified to a Participant at the

time of the offer of grant, and shall not be lower than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which

must be a business day;

(o) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the Shares for the time being.

Ranking of Shares

The Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an Option will be subject
to all the provisions of the Company’s Bye-Laws for the time being in
force and will rank pari passu with the fully paid Shares in issue on the
date of allotment and accordingly will entitle the holders to participate in
all dividends or other distributions paid or made on or after the date of
allotment other than any dividend or other distributions previously
declared or recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the record

date therefor shall be before the date of allotment.



ol
oT
A\ /
bl

Share Option Information

BRESE @

11.

12.

13.

$H4R BB R R B 2 PR 11.

BRENSKRENS 2 EMHHEHATSRER
P2RER  TREERTERE  EE Lt
ASRERDZEHEERE LBMA/LL - L
ERBZE()RIEARRZH PN EFEEE
MBTEEFERHLZ A - ROBIFEARLRQ 7 R
RARIZZ E B A R RAR MR Bk 2F
BEHEZHEBAR (MEFUNREHRRE) 2
A—EAREAMEEZAILHAFEA -

HMBRES B 2EXH 12.
AR AR ST 8 2 B A R i % 5t 8 B AR AT
hF - HBRE SR ZE SR REN®
Gt MARSELEBRLERE ERXEZE
B AER DA R R A R %At BHE R EFATE -
HBRES B 2ARH 13.

1R I A% SRE F K & A% IR AL B BR 4 R AR A AR
E EREAIERAEREE_T-FF
NA++EH -

SHARE 0PT|0N SCHEME (continued)

Restrictions on the time of grant of options

A grant of Options may not be made after a price sensitive event has
occurred or a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision
until such price sensitive information has been published in the
newspapers. In particular, the Board shall not offer the grant of an
Option to any Participant during the period commencing one month
immediately preceding the earlier of (i) the date of the meeting of the
Directors for the approval of the Company’s interim or annual results,
and (ii) the last date on which the Company must publish its interim or
annual results announcement under its listing agreement with the Stock

Exchange and ending on the date of the announcement of the results.

Period of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
5 years commencing on the date on which the New Share Option Scheme
become unconditional, after which no further Options will be issued,
and thereafter for so long as there are outstanding any unexercised
Options granted pursuant thereto and in order to give effect to the
exercise of any such Options or otherwise as may be required in

accordance with the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme.

The life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 17 August 2010,

subject to approval by shareholders to adopt the New Share Option Scheme

at the annual general meeting.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2007 Annual General Meeting of Daiwa
Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Academy Room I-II,
1/F., International Grand Stanford Hotel, 70 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 31 August 2007 at 3:30 p.m., for the following

purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited accounts and the Reports of the

Directors and auditors for the year ended 31 March 2007;

2. To declare a final dividend;

3. To re-elect directors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their

remuneration;

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix

their remuneration; and

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, by

way of special business, the following Ordinary Resolutions:

(1) “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital
of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which would or might require the exercise of
such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which
would or might require the exercise of such power after

the end of the Relevant Period;
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the aggregate nominal value of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
rights issue (as hereinafter defined), or (ii) an issue of
shares upon the exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to any warrants which may be issued by the
Company from time to time, or (iii) an issue of shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted pursuant to
a share option scheme adopted by the Company under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue to employees
(including executive directors) of the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares,
or (iv) any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment and issue of shares in the
Company in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares in the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing of this Resolution

and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company;

(if) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the bye-laws of the Company or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or any

applicable laws to be held; and
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(2) “THAT:

(iii) the revocation or variations of the authority given
under this resolution by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of the Company
or issue of options to subscribe for shares of the Company
open for a period fixed by the directors of the Company
to holders of shares whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject
to such exclusion or other arrangements as the directors
of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any
stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the

Company).”

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to
purchase its own shares, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and regulations, the bye-laws of
the Company and/or the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited or of any other stock exchange as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally

and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company
to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing of this resolution and the said approval

shall be limited accordingly; and
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for the purposes of this resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company;

(if) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the bye-laws of the Company or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or any other

applicable law to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variations of the authority given
under this resolution by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting.”
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(3)  “THAT:

conditional upon the passing of Ordinary Resolutions Nos. (1)
and (2) as set out in item 5 of the notice convening this meeting,
the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
the shares in the Company pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No.
(1) as set out in item 5 of the notice convening this meeting be
and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. (2) as set out in
item 5 of the notice convening this meeting, providing that such
amount shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date

of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Ho Chui Sing

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 31 July 2007

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy or proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Completion and return of a form of proxy will not preclude a member from
attending and voting in person at the meeting.

In order to be valid, a form of proxy together with a power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof,
must be deposited at the office of the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong,
Abacus Share Registrars Limited, 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting or poll (as the case may be).

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 27 August
2007 to Friday, 31 August 2007, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
properly completed transfer forms accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Abacus Share Registrars Limited, 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Friday, 24 August 2007.
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